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Item 2.              Acquisition or Disposition of Assets. 
                     ------------------------------------  
 
          As previously disclosed on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on July 23, 1996, Vail Resorts, Inc. (the "Company"), 
entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") dated as of 
July 22, 1996, as amended, among the Company, Ralston Foods, Inc. ("Foods") and 
Ralston Resorts, Inc. ("Resorts") pursuant to which the Company acquired from 
Foods the ski and resort operations of Resorts (the Acquisition").  The closing 
of the Acquisition occurred on January 3, 1997. 
 
          In connection with the Acquisition, Foods received  3,777,203 shares 
of common stock of the Company, (which may be increased as a result of certain 
post-closing adjustments) and the Company assumed $165,000,000 of the 
outstanding indebtedness of Resorts. 
 
          The Company has resolved antitrust concerns of the United States  
Department of Justice ("DOJ") raised by the Acquisition by entering into a  
Stipulation and Final Judgment (the "Consent Decree") with the DOJ and the  
Attorney General of the State of Colorado. Specifically, the Company has agreed  
to divest the assets constituting the Arapahoe Basin mountain resort, one of the 
resorts acquired from Resorts, by June 2, 1997. The Consent Decree (i) requires  
the Company to use its best efforts to complete the divestiture as expeditiously 
as possible, (ii) gives the DOJ the ability, in its sole discretion, to extend  
the time period for completing the divestiture by an additional 90 days, and  
(iii) allows for the appointment of a trustee to accomplish the divestiture at  
the best price then obtainable upon a reasonable effort by the trustee in the  
event the divestiture has not been completed within the allotted time period.  
Until the divestiture is accomplished, the Consent Decree requires the Company  
to take all steps necessary to assure that the Arapahoe Basin mountain resort  
will be maintained and operated as an ongoing, economically viable resort,  
including maintaining its usual and ordinary levels of marketing personnel and  
marketing activity, and maintaining the resort's assets in operable condition  
based on normal maintenance, and prohibits the Company from taking any action  
that would jeopardize the divestiture of the resort. The Consent Decree will  
become final upon approval by the United States District Court for the District  
of Colorado, following a 60 day comment period. 
 
          At the closing, the Company entered into a Shareholder Agreement with 
Foods pursuant to which (i) Foods agreed to a voting agreement with respect to 
certain actions by the Company's Board of Directors; (ii) Foods agreed to 
certain restrictions on the sale of its common stock; and (iii) Foods was 
granted certain demand and piggyback registration rights. 
 
          For a more complete description of the Acquisition, reference is 
hereby made to the Purchase Agreement (a copy of which is filed as an exhibit 
hereto). 
 
Item 7.  Financial Statements and Exhibits 
 
     (a)  Financial Statements of Business Acquired 
 
          The Financial Statements required by this Item 7(a) are filed as an 
          exhibit hereto. 
 
     (b)  Pro Forma Financial Information 
 
          The pro forma financial information required by this Item 7(b) is 
          filed as an exhibit hereto. 
 
     (c)  Exhibits 
 
          2.1  Stock Purchase Agreement ("Stock Purchase Agreement") dated as of 
               July 22, 1996, among the Company, Foods and Resorts (incorporated 
               by reference from the Registrant's Form 8-K filed on July 23, 
               1996). 
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          2.2  Amendment No. 1 to the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of 
               December 20, 1996. 
 
          2.3  Amendment No. 2 to the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of 
               December 31, 1996. 
 
          2.4  Shareholder Agreement dated as of January 3, 1997 among the 
               Company, Apollo Ski Partners, L.P. and Foods. 
 
          2.5  Financial Statements of Ralston Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiaries. 
 
          2.6  Pro Forma Financial Data. 
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                                   SIGNATURE 
                                   --------- 
 
 
          Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned hereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
                             VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
 
 
 
Dated:  January 8, 1997          By:    /s/ James S. Mandel 
                                        ----------------------- 
                                 Name:  James S. Mandel 
                                 Title: Senior Vice President, 
                                           General Counsel and 
                                              Secretary 
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                                                                     EXHIBIT 2.2 
 
                              FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
                         THE STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
        This FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT dated as of  
December 20, 1996 ("First amendment") is made by and among Vail Resorts, Inc., a 
Delaware corporation ("Vail"), Ralston Foods, Inc., a Nevada corporation  
("Foods"), and Ralston Resorts Inc., a  Colorado corporation ("Ralston"),  
amending certain provisions of the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 22, 
1996 (the "Purchase Agreement"), by and among Vail, Foods and Ralston.  Terms  
not otherwise defined herein which are defined in the Purchase Agreement  
shall have the same respective meanings herein as therein. 
 
 
        WHEREAS, Vail, Foods and Ralston have agreed to modify certain terms and 
conditions of the Purchase Agreement as specifically set forth in this First  
Amendment. 
 
        NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual agreements  
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and  
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
                                   ARTICLE I 
 
                     AMENDMENTS TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
                1.1  Section 10.3 of the Purchase Agreement is amended in its 
entirety to read as follows: 
 
                11.3 Final Closing Date. This Agreement will terminate if the  
                     ------------------ 
Closing has not taken place on or before January 10, 1997. 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE II 
 
 
                    PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 
 
                2.1 Except as otherwise expressly provided by this First 
Amendment, all of the terms, conditions and provisions to the Purchase Agreement 
remain unaltered. The Purchase Agreement and this First Amendment shall be read 
and construed as one agreement. 
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        2.2  If any of the terms of this First Amendment shall conflict in any  
respect with any of the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the terms of the First  
Amendment shall be controlling. 
 
        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this First Amendment  
to be executed by their duly authorized officers all as of the day and year  
first above written. 
 
                                        VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
 
                                        By: /s/ James Mandel 
                                           -------------------------------- 
                                             Name:  James Mandel 
                                             Title: S.V.P. 
 
 
                                        RALSTON FOODS, INC. 
 
                                        By: /s/ J.A. Micheletto 
                                           -------------------------------- 
                                             Name:  J.A. Micheletto 
                                             Title: Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
                                        RALSTON RESORTS, INC. 
 
                                        By: /s/ J.A. Micheletto 
                                           -------------------------------- 
                                             Name:  J.A. Micheletto 
                                             Title: Chief Executive Officer 
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                              SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
                         THE STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
        This SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT dated as of  
December 31, 1996 ("Second Amendment") is made by and among Vail Resorts, Inc.,  
a Delaware corporation ("Vail"), Ralston Foods, Inc., a Nevada corporation  
("Foods"), and Ralston Resorts Inc., a Colorado corporation ("Ralston"), 
amending certain provisions of the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 22, 
1996, as amended by a first amendment dated December 20, 1996 (the "Purchase 
Agreement"), by and among Vail, Foods and Ralston. Terms not otherwise defined 
herein that are defined in the Purchase Agreement shall have the same respective 
meanings herein as therein. 
 
        WHEREAS, Vail, Foods and Ralston have agreed to modify certain terms and 
conditions of the Purchase Agreement as specifically set forth in this Second 
Amendment. 
 
        NOW, THEREFOR, in consideration of the premises and mutual agreements  
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and  
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
                                   ARTICLE I 
 
                       AMENDMENTS TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
        1.1  The definition of Closing Date in Article I of the Purchase  
Agreement is amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
                January 3, 1997. 
 
        1.2  The first sentence of Section 3.4 of the Purchase Agreement is  
amended by deleting the word "Missouri" and substituting therefor the word  
"Nevada." 
 
        1.3  The second sentence of Section 4.1 is amended by deleting the  
figure "3,612,809" and substituting therefor the figure "4,159,131" and by  
deleting the figure "6,387,191" and substituting therefor the figure  
"6,213,110." 
 
        1.4  Section 9.3(b) of the Purchase Agreement is amended in its entirety 
to read as follows: 
 
        The deposit and disbursement bank accounts used in Ralston's business,  
and cash management activities related thereto, shall be transferred to Vail and 
operated as provided on Schedule 9.3(b) attached hereto. 
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                                  ARTICLE II 
 
                                  SCHEDULES 
 
       Attached hereto are revised Schedules delivered by each of Foods and Vail 
(except for Schedule 4.10 provided by Vail which shall remain the same as 
initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement). Such Schedules 
constitute the Schedules that are required to be delivered pursuant to the 
Purchase Agreement. 
 
                                  ARTICLE III 
                       PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 
 
        3.1  Except as otherwise expressly provided by this Second Amendment,  
all of the terms, conditions and provisions to the Purchase Agreement remain  
unaltered.  The Purchase Agreement and this Second Amendment shall be read and  
construed as one agreement. 
 
        3.2  If any of the terms of this Second Amendment shall conflict in any  
respect with any of the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the terms of the Second 
Amendment shall be controlling. 
 
                  REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 



 
  
        IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this second Amendment 
to be executed by their duly authorized officers all as of the day and year 
first above written 
 
 
                                            VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
 
                                            By: /s/ James Mandel 
                                              ---------------------------- 
                                              Name: James Mandel 
                                              Title: S.V.P. 
 
                                            RALSTON FOODS, INC. 
                                              
                                            By: /s/ J.A. Micheletto 
                                              ---------------------------- 
                                              Name: J.A. Micheletto 
                                              Title: Chief Executive Officer 
 
                                            RALSTON RESORTS, INC. 
 
                                            By: /s/ J.A. Micheletto 
                                              ---------------------------- 
                                              Name:  J.A. Micheletto 
                                              Title: Chief Executive Officer 
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                             SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT 
 
                                     Among 
 
                               VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
 
                              RALSTON FOODS, INC. 
 
                                      AND 
 
                           APOLLO SKI PARTNERS, L.P. 
 
 
 
                                January 3, 1997 
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                             SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT 
                             --------------------- 
 
 
          THIS SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT, dated January 3, 1997 (the "Agreement"), 
is among Vail Resorts, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Vail"), Ralston Foods, 
Inc., a Nevada corporation ("Foods"), and Apollo Ski Partners, L.P., a Delaware 
limited partnership ("Apollo") (Foods and Apollo and their respective legal 
representatives, successors and assigns are referred to herein individually as a 
"Shareholder" and collectively as the "Shareholders"). 
 
          WHEREAS, pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 22, 
1996, as amended (the "Purchase Agreement") by and among Vail, Foods and Ralston 
Resorts, Inc., a Colorado corporation ("Ralston"), Vail acquired all of the 
outstanding shares of capital stock of Ralston in exchange for 3,777,203 shares 
of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of Vail ("Vail Stock"); and 
 
          WHEREAS, Apollo owns 1,325,669 shares of Vail Stock and 5,958,874 
shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of Vail ("Vail Class A 
Stock"); and 
 
          WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement to 
provide for certain rights and restrictions with respect to the shares of Vail 
Equity (as hereinafter defined). 
 
          NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
obligations set forth herein, each of Vail and Foods agree as follows: 
 
                                   ARTICLE I 
 
                                  DEFINITIONS 
                                  ----------- 
 
          As used in this Agreement, and unless the context requires a different 
meaning, the following terms (whether used in the singular or plural) have the 
meanings indicated herein.  Any term used and not defined herein has the meaning 
set forth in the Purchase Agreement. 
 
          "Affiliate" of a Person means any other Person that directly or 
           ---------                                                      
indirectly through one or more intermediaries Controls, is Controlled by or is 
under common Control with such Person. 
 
          "Apollo" has the meaning set forth above in the recitals to this 
           ------                                                          
Agreement. 
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          "Apollo Option Period" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(c) of 
           --------------------                                                 
this Agreement. 
 
          "Associate" of a Person means any of such Person's directors, 
           ---------                                                    
officers, shareholders, representatives, trustees, employees, attorneys, 
advisors or agents. 
 
          "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal 
           ------------                                                       
holiday for commercial banks in New York City. 
 
          "Change of Control" means any "person" or "group" (as such terms are 
           -----------------                                                   
used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended), other than Apollo or one or more Affiliates of Appollo, becomes the 
beneficial owner of (i) more than 50% of the total outstanding Vail Securities 
or (ii) such number of Vail Securities which would allow such person or group to 
elect a majority of the Board of Directors of Vail. 
 
          "Closing" means the closing of the transactions contemplated by the 
           -------                                                            
Purchase Agreement. 
 
          "Control" (including the terms "Controlling," "Controlled by" and 
           -------                                                          
"under common Control with") means the possession of the power, directly or 
indirectly, (a) to elect a majority of the board of directors (or equivalent 
governing body) of the entity in question; or (b) to direct or cause the 
direction of the management and policies of or with respect to the entity or 
assets in question, whether through ownership of securities, by contract or 
otherwise. 
 
          "Demand Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a) of this 
           -------------                                                      
Agreement. 
 
          "Demand Registration" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(a) of 
           -------------------                                                 
this Agreement. 
 
          "Discussion Period" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.3(b) of 
           -----------------                                                  
this Agreement. 
 
          "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 
           ------------                                                         
and the rules and regulations thereunder. 
 
          "First Option" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(b) of this 
           ------------                                                      
Agreement. 
 
          "Foods" has the meaning set forth above in the recitals to this 
           -----                                                          
Agreement. 
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          "Foods Initiated IPO" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.3(b) of 
           -------------------                                                  
this Agreement. 
 
          "Foods Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.3(b) of this 
           ------------                                                       
Agreement. 
 
          "GAAP" means accounting principles which are (a) consistent with the 
           ----                                                                
principles promulgated or adopted by the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
and its predecessors in effect from time to time and (b) applied on a basis 
consistent with prior periods. 
 
          "Group" means any group of Persons within the meaning of Section 
           -----                                                           
13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act. 
 
          "IPO" means the consummation of an initial public offering of Vail 
           ---                                                               
Stock pursuant to a registration statement filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. 
 
          "Loss" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1(a)(i) of this 
           ----                                                         
Agreement. 
 
          "Marketable Number" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(e) of 
           -----------------                                                 
this Agreement. 
 
          "Non-Qualified Transferee" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1 of 
           ------------------------                                              
this Agreement. 
 
          "Non-Requesting Shareholder" has the meaning set forth in Section 
           --------------------------                                       
5.1(e) of this Agreement. 
 
          "Person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, trust, 
           ------                                                        
incorporated or unincorporated association, joint venture, joint stock company, 
limited liability company, government (or an agency or political subdivision 
thereof) or other entity of any kind. 
 
          "Piggyback Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a) of this 
           ----------------                                                      
Agreement. 
 
          "Piggyback Registration" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a) 
           ----------------------                                              
of this Agreement. 
 
          "Piggyback Shareholder" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.3(a) of 
           ---------------------                                                 
this Agreement. 
 
          "Private Sale" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2 of this 
           ------------                                                   
Agreement. 
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          "Purchase Agreement" has the meaning set forth above in the recitals 
           ------------------                                                  
to this Agreement. 
 
          "Ralston" has the meaning set forth above in the recitals to this 
           -------                                                          
Agreement. 
 
          "Registration Statement" means any registration statement or 
           ----------------------                                      
comparable document under Section 5 of the Securities Act through which a public 
sale or disposition of Vail Securities may be registered other than a 
registration statement (a) relating to an Employee Benefit Plan or similar plan 
or a business combination or (b) on any form that is not available for a 
secondary offering. 
 
          "Requesting Shareholder" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(d) 
           ----------------------                                              
of this Agreement. 
 
          "SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission or other federal 
           ---                                                                
agency at the time administering the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or any 
successor acts thereto. 
 
          "Second Option" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(c) of this 
           -------------                                                      
Agreement. 
 
          "Section 4.1 Shares" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(a) of 
           ------------------                                                 
this Agreement. 
 
          "Section 5.6 Shares" has the meaning set forth in Section 5.6 of this 
           ------------------                                                   
Agreement. 
 
          "Section 9.1 Shares" has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1 of this 
           ------------------                                                   
Agreement. 
 
          "Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the 
           --------------                                                        
rules and regulations thereunder. 
 
          "Shareholder" means Apollo or Foods and its permitted successors and 
           -----------                                                         
assigns. 
 
          "Shareholder Indemnified Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 
           -----------------------------                                       
8.1(c) of this Agreement. 
 
          "Transfer" with respect to all or any part of the Vail Equity means to 
           --------                                                              
directly or indirectly (whether or not through an underwriter) sell, convey, 
distribute, transfer (by merger or otherwise), assign, devise, exchange, 
encumber, gift, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of such Vail Equity 
(including without limitation the sale or disposition of an entity the 
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primary asset of which is Vail Equity). 
 
          "Transfer Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(a) of this 
           ---------------                                                      
Agreement. 
 
          "Trigger Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.3(a) of this 
           ------------                                                       
Agreement. 
 
          "Vail" has the meaning set forth above in the recitals to this 
           ----                                                          
Agreement. 
 
          "Vail Class A Stock" means the Class A Common Stock of Vail, par value 
           ------------------                                                    
$.01 per share. 
 
          "Vail Equity" means (i) shares of Vail Stock acquired by Foods at the 
           -----------                                                          
Closing and any other Vail Securities owned, beneficially or of record, by Foods 
or any of its Affiliates at any time during the term of this Agreement and (ii) 
shares of Vail Stock, Vail Class A Stock and any other Vail Securities owned, 
beneficially or of record, by Apollo or any of its Affiliates at any time during 
the term of this Agreement. 
 
          "Vail Indemnified Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1(a) 
           ----------------------                                              
of this Agreement. 
 
          "Vail Market Price" means the average of the closing sale prices of 
           -----------------                                                  
the Vail Stock being valued on the New York Stock Exchange or, if the Vail Stock 
is not listed or admitted to trading on the New York Stock Exchange, as reported 
in the principal consolidated transaction reporting system of the principal 
national securities exchange on which the Vail Stock is listed or admitted to 
trading, for the twenty (20) trading days which end on the day immediately prior 
to the date of the Demand Notice.  If the Vail Stock is not listed or admitted 
to trading on any national securities exchange, "Vail Market Price" means the 
last quoted sale price or, if not so quoted, the average of the high bid and low 
asked prices in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the National 
Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Automated Quotation System or such other 
system then in use, for the twenty (20) trading days which end on the day 
immediately prior to such date or, if on any such trading day the Vail Stock is 
not quoted by any such organization, the average of the closing bid and asked 
prices as furnished by two professional market makers making a market in the 
Vail Stock, one selected in good faith by the board of directors of Vail and the 
other selected in good faith by Foods.  If the Vail Stock is not publicly held 
or so listed or publicly traded, "Vail Market Price" means the cash price at 
which a willing seller would sell 
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and a willing buyer would buy such securities in an arm's-length negotiated 
transaction without undue time restraints, as determined in good faith by an 
investment banking firm selected by agreement between Vail and Foods. 
 
          "Vail Option Period" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(b) of 
           ------------------                                                 
this Agreement. 
 
          "Vail Securities" means the Vail Stock, Vail Class A Stock and any 
           ---------------                                                   
other voting securities of Vail or its Affiliates, including any securities 
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for any voting securities of 
Vail. 
 
          "Vail Stock" has the meaning set forth above in the recitals to this 
           ----------                                                          
Agreement. 
 
                                   ARTICLE II 
 
                        STANDSTILL AND VOTING PROVISIONS 
                        -------------------------------- 
 
          Section 2.1  Standstill Covenants.  Unless otherwise permitted in this 
                       --------------------                                      
Agreement, Foods agrees that during the term of this Agreement, it will not, 
directly or indirectly: 
 
          (a) acquire, offer to acquire, or agree to acquire by purchase or 
     otherwise, any Vail Securities except as a result of a stock split, stock 
     dividend or similar recapitalization by Vail; 
 
          (b) except in the ordinary course of business, acquire, offer to 
     acquire, or agree to acquire by purchase or otherwise, any assets of Vail; 
 
          (c) initiate, solicit, propose, seek to effect or negotiate, alone or 
     with any other Person, (i) any form of business combination transaction 
     involving Vail or any  Affiliate thereof, or (ii) any restructuring, 
     recapitalization or similar transaction with respect to Vail or any 
     Affiliate thereof; 
 
          (d) initiate, solicit, propose, seek to effect, negotiate, or announce 
     an intent to make, alone or with any other Person, any tender offer, 
     exchange offer, merger, consolidation or share exchange for any Vail 
     Securities, or disclose an intent, purpose, plan or proposal with respect 
     to Vail, any of its Affiliates or any Vail Securities inconsistent with the 
     provisions of this Agreement; 
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          (e) make, or in any way participate in, any "solicitation" of 
     "proxies" (as such terms are defined or used in Regulation 14A under the 
     Exchange Act) with respect to Vail or any of its Affiliates or become a 
     "participant" in any "election contest" (as such terms are defined or used 
     in Rule 14a-11 under the Exchange Act) involving Vail or any of its 
     Affiliates; 
 
          (f) initiate, solicit or propose the approval of one or more 
     shareholder proposals with respect to Vail or any of its Affiliates or 
     induce or attempt to induce any other Person to initiate any such 
     shareholder proposal; 
 
          (g) form, join or in any way participate in a Group with respect to 
     the Vail Securities; 
 
          (h) except as expressly provided herein, seek election to or seek to 
     place a representative on the board of directors of Vail or any of its 
     Affiliates or seek the removal of any member of the board of directors of 
     Vail or any of its Affiliates; 
 
          (i) except for participation on the board of directors of Vail, act in 
     concert with any other Person to seek to affect the management or board of 
     directors of Vail or any of its Affiliates or the business, operations or 
     affairs of Vail or any of its Affiliates; 
 
          (j) call or seek to have called any meeting of the shareholders of 
     Vail or any of its Affiliates; 
 
          (k) disclose to any third party or in any filing with any governmental 
     authority any intention, plan or arrangement inconsistent with any of the 
     foregoing or with  the restrictions on transfer set forth in this 
     Agreement; or 
 
          (l) enter into any discussions, negotiations, arrangements or 
     understandings with any third party with respect to any of the foregoing, 
     or advise, assist, encourage or influence any other Person to take any 
     action with respect to any of the foregoing. 
 
          Section 2.2  Acquisition of Vail Securities.  Notwithstanding Section 
                       ------------------------------                           
2.1 hereof, Foods may purchase in one or more open market transactions or 
otherwise (including the IPO) that number of shares of Vail Securities necessary 
for Foods to continue to account for its investment in Vail under the equity 
accounting method under GAAP; provided, that in no event shall 
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any such purchase result in the ownership by Foods and its Affiliates of Vail 
Securities exceeding 23.5% of the total outstanding Vail Securities.  In the 
event that Vail proposes to register or otherwise offer any Vail Securities for 
sale for its own account (including the IPO) under the Securities Act (other 
than a registration of securities in connection with a merger, an acquisition, 
an exchange offer or an employee benefit plan maintained by Vail or its 
Affiliates or on Form S-4 or S-8 or any successor or similar form or by means of 
a shelf registration pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act) or in a 
transaction exempt from registration under the Securities Act (a "Private 
Sale"), Vail will give written notice to Foods of its intention to do so and of 
Foods' rights under this Section 2.2, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior 
to the anticipated filing date of a Registration Statement relating to such 
registration (or if such transaction is a Private Sale a comparable period of 
time).  Foods will have the right, but not the obligation, to elect to purchase 
shares in such offering (including the IPO), at the same price Vail is to 
receive for the shares to be sold for its account provided that if such offering 
is not the IPO Foods shall only have such purchase right if Apollo is purchasing 
Vail Securities in such offering, in which case the number of Vail Securities 
that Foods may purchase in such offering shall be equal to the number of shares 
proposed to be purchased by Apollo multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of 
which is the total number or shares of Vail Equity owned by Foods at such time 
and the denominator of which is the sum of the total number of shares of Vail 
Equity owned by Apollo and Foods at such time.  In the event that the size of 
such offering is increased after Foods has received notice of such offering, 
Foods will have the right, but not the obligation, to  proportionately increase 
its purchase of shares in such offering.  Foods may exercise its purchase rights 
under this Section 2.2 by notifying Vail of its election to purchase shares 
(which election shall be irrevocable) in such offering within ten days of 
receiving notice from Vail (failure by Foods to give such notice within such 
ten-business-day period shall be deemed an election by Foods not to purchase 
Vail Securities in such offering).  Any purchase by Foods of Vail Securities 
pursuant to this Section 2.2 may not result in Foods and its Affiliates' 
ownership exceeding 23.5% of the total outstanding Vail Securities.  Foods shall 
not be entitled to a Piggyback Registration with respect to any offering if it 
has elected to purchase Vail Securities in such offering. 
 
          Section 2.3  Voting of Vail Equity.  Foods agrees that during the term 
                       ---------------------                                     
of this Agreement, with respect to the election of directors of Vail, each class 
of Vail Equity owned by Foods and its Affiliates shall be voted (i) "for" the 
nominees 
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recommended by the Board of Directors of Vail, provided Vail and Apollo are in 
compliance with the terms of Section 11.2 of this Agreement, (ii) in accordance 
with the recommendation of the Board of Directors of Vail on each proposal of a 
security holder pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act, so long as the 
subject matter of such proposal does not fall within the proviso hereto, and 
(iii) with respect to all other matters requiring a vote of the Vail Equity, 
"for" any proposal in the same proportion as the votes cast "for" such proposal 
by the holders of the Vail Securities of the same class (excluding the Vail 
Equity owned by Foods), and "against" any proposal in the same proportion as the 
votes cast "against" such proposal by the holders of each such class of Vail 
Securities (excluding the Vail Equity owned by Foods) and that with respect to 
broker non-votes and abstentions, each class of Vail Equity owned by Foods will 
be voted in the same proportion as votes deemed "for," "against" or "abstain," 
giving effect to broker non-votes and abstentions as required under the laws and 
rules then applicable; provided, however, that Foods shall retain the right to 
                       --------  -------                                       
vote its Vail Equity in any manner it sees fit with respect to any proposals for 
(1) the merger, consolidation or other business combination of Vail or any 
subsidiary of Vail with or into any other corporation, (2) the sale, lease, 
exchange, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of the 
assets of Vail and all of its subsidiaries taken together as a single business, 
(3) the creation of any other class of stock with voting rights and (4) changes 
to the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of Vail that adversely affect 
Foods' rights under this Agreement.  The  provisions of this Section 2.3 shall 
apply to both the casting of votes at meetings of shareholders and execution of 
actions by written consent. 
 
          Section 2.4  Restrictions on Certain Transactions Prior to IPO.  Prior 
                       -------------------------------------------------         
to the IPO, Vail shall not, without the prior written approval of Foods, (1) 
enter into transactions with Apollo or its Affiliates that are not on an arm's- 
length basis (other than the continuation or extension of contracts or 
arrangements between Vail and Apollo and its Affiliates that are in existence as 
of the date of this Agreement and have heretofore been disclosed to Foods), (2) 
permit (a) the merger of Vail with or into any other corporation (other than a 
subsidiary of Vail), (b) the sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other 
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of Vail and all of its 
subsidiaries taken together as a single business, (c) the creation of any other 
class of stock with voting rights that materially adversely affects Foods' 
rights under this Agreement or (d) changes to the Certificate of Incorporation 
or Bylaws of Vail that adversely affect Foods' rights under this Agreement, or 
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(3) enter into any material business not currently conducted by Vail that is not 
related to the operation of ski resorts, real estate or the vacation, leisure 
and entertainment industries. 
 
                                  ARTICLE III 
 
                            TRANSFER OF VAIL EQUITY 
                            ----------------------- 
 
          Section 3.1  Restrictions on Transfer.  During the term of this 
                       ------------------------                           
Agreement, Foods agrees that it will not, and it will cause each of its 
Affiliates who acquire Vail Equity not to, Transfer any Vail Equity, except as 
permitted by or in accordance with this Agreement. 
 
          Section 3.2  Exceptions to Restrictions.  Subject to all applicable 
                       --------------------------                             
laws, the restrictions on Transfer set forth in Section 3.1 hereof shall not 
apply to any of the following: 
 
          (a) a Transfer of some or all of the Vail Equity pro rata to all of 
     the holders of common stock of Foods as a dividend or distribution, in 
     redemption of the Foods Stock or pursuant to a similar transaction; 
 
          (b) a Transfer of some or all of the Vail Equity to an Affiliate of 
     Foods, provided that such Affiliate (i) shall agree to be bound by and 
     subject to the  provisions of this Agreement, (ii) Foods shall remain 
     liable for the performance by such Affiliate of its obligations under this 
     Agreement and (iii) such Affiliate shall have executed and  delivered to 
     Vail the guaranty required by Section 5.14 of the Purchase Agreement; 
 
          (c) a Transfer of some or all of the Vail Equity in accordance with 
     Section 5.1 or 5.3 of this Agreement; 
 
          (d) a Transfer of some or all of the Vail Equity in any tender offer, 
     self-tender, exchange offer, going private transaction or other transaction 
     involving a Transfer which is recommended to shareholders of Vail by at 
     least a majority of the Board of Directors of Vail; 
 
          (e) subject to Section 4.1, a Transfer of some or all of the Vail 
     Equity with the prior written consent of a majority of the Board of 
     Directors of Vail; 
 
          (f) subject to Section 4.1, a Transfer of some or all of the Vail 
     Equity pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act if an IPO has not been 
     consummated by December 31, 1998; 
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          (g) subject to Section 4.1, a Transfer of some or all of the Vail 
     Equity if an IPO has not been consummated by December 31, 1998 and such 
     transferee agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement; and 
 
          (h) subject to Section 4.1, a Transfer of some or all of the Vail 
     Equity on or after the date which is 18 months after the date of this 
     Agreement, provided that (i) the transferee agrees to be bound by and 
     subject to the provisions of this Agreement, (ii) after giving effect to 
     such Transfer, the transferee will not own, directly or indirectly, more 
     than 10% of the then outstanding Vail Securities and (iii) such transferee 
     agrees with Vail and Apollo not to thereafter purchase or otherwise 
     acquire, directly or indirectly, any additional Vail Securities if it would 
     result in such transferee owning, directly or indirectly, more than 10% of 
     the then outstanding Vail Securities. 
 
          Section 3.3  Improper Transfer.  Any attempt to Transfer any shares of 
                       -----------------                                         
Vail Equity not in accordance with this Agreement will be null and void and Vail 
will not give nor  permit the transfer agent of Vail to give any effect to such 
attempted Transfer in its stock records. 
 
          Section 3.4  Restrictive Legend. 
                       ------------------  
 
          (a) A copy of this Agreement will be filed with the Secretary of Vail 
and kept with the records of Vail.  All certificates representing shares of Vail 
Equity hereafter issued to or acquired by Foods or its successors or permitted 
assigns, will bear the following legend (until such time as such shares are sold 
pursuant to an effective registration statement or pursuant to Rule 144 under 
the Securities Act) noted conspicuously on such certificates: 
 
     THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT 
     ONLY, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, TRANSFERRED (BY MERGER OR OTHERWISE), 
     ASSIGNED, DEVISED, EXCHANGED, GIFTED, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE 
     DISPOSED OF UNLESS AND UNTIL REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, 
     AS AMENDED (THE "ACT"), AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR UNLESS 
     SUCH TRANSFER IS EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION, AND AN ACCEPTABLE OPINION OF 
     COUNSEL IS DELIVERED TO VAIL RESORTS, INC. WITH REGARD TO SUCH EXEMPTION, 
     OR IS OTHERWISE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND SUCH STATE SECURITIES LAWS. 
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     THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO THE RESTRICTIONS ON 
     TRANSFER SET FORTH IN THE SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT, DATED           , 1996. 
     NO TRANSFER OF THESE SHARES WILL BE EFFECTIVE UNLESS AND UNTIL THE TERMS 
     AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT HAVE BEEN COMPLIED WITH IN 
     FULL AND NO PERSON MAY REQUEST VAIL RESORTS, INC.  TO RECORD THE TRANSFER 
     OF ANY SHARES IF SUCH TRANSFER IS IN VIOLATION OF SUCH SHAREHOLDER 
     AGREEMENT.  A COPY OF THE SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT IS ON FILE AT THE EXECUTIVE 
     OFFICES OF VAIL RESORTS, INC. AND WILL BE FURNISHED WITHOUT CHARGE TO THE 
     HOLDER OF SUCH SHARES UPON WRITTEN REQUEST.  THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS 
     CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
     SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT AND NO VOTE OF SUCH SHARES THAT CONTRAVENES THE 
     SHAREHOLDER AGREEMENT SHALL BE EFFECTIVE. 
 
          (b) Until such time as the Vail Equity has been registered pursuant to 
a registration statement under the Securities Act or sold pursuant to Rule 144 
of the Securities Act, the certificates representing Vail Equity (including, 
without limitation, all certificates issued upon Transfer or in  exchange or 
substitution therefor) will also bear any legend required under any other 
applicable laws, including state securities or blue sky laws. 
 
          (c) Vail may make a notation on its records or give stop-transfer 
instructions to any transfer agents or registrars for the Vail Equity in order 
to implement the restrictions set forth in this Article III. 
 
          (d) In the event Foods acquires any other or additional Vail 
Securities, Foods will submit all certificates representing such Vail Securities 
to Vail so that any appropriate legend or legends required by this Section 3.4 
may be placed thereon. 
 
                                   ARTICLE IV 
 
                              RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER 
                              -------------------- 
 
          Section 4.1  Sales by Foods. 
                       --------------  
 
          (a) Prior to any Transfer pursuant to Section 3.2(e), (f), (g) and 
(h), Foods must first give written notice of its intent to make such Transfer (a 
"Transfer Notice") to Vail and Apollo setting forth the number of shares of Vail 
Equity (the "Section 4.1 Shares") that Foods desires to Transfer and the cash 
price that Foods proposes to be paid for such Section 4.1 Shares 
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and the other terms and conditions of such proposed Transfer. 
 
          (b) Vail shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase the 
Section 4.1 Shares (the "First Option") on the same terms and conditions as set 
forth in such notice, which option shall be exercised by delivering to Foods 
irrevocable written notice of its commitment to purchase the Section 4.1 Shares 
within ten business days after receipt of the Transfer Notice (the "Vail Option 
Period").  Failure by Vail to give such notice within such ten-business-day 
period shall be deemed an election by Vail not to purchase the Section 4.1 
Shares. 
 
          (c) In the event that Vail decides not to purchase the Section 4.1 
Shares pursuant to Section 4.1(b), then Apollo will have the right, but not the 
obligation, to purchase the Section 4.1 Shares (the "Second Option") on the same 
terms and conditions as set forth in the Transfer Notice, which option shall be 
exercised by delivering to Foods irrevocable written  notice of its commitment 
to purchase the Section 4.1 Shares within five business days after the 
termination of the Vail Option Period (the "Apollo Option Period").  Failure by 
Apollo to give such notice within such five-business-day period shall be deemed 
an election by Apollo not to purchase the Section 4.1 Shares. 
 
          (d) Delivery of written notice by Vail or Apollo accepting the First 
Option or the Second Option, as the case may be, shall constitute a contract 
between Vail or Apollo, on the one hand, and Foods, on the other hand, for the 
purchase and sale of the Section 4.1 Shares on the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Transfer Notice.  The purchase of any shares pursuant to the 
exercise of the First Option or the Second Option, as the case may be, shall be 
completed not later than 30 days following delivery of the Transfer Notice with 
respect to the Section 4.1 Shares, subject to receipt of any required material 
third-party or governmental approvals, compliance with applicable laws and the 
absence of any injunction or similar legal order preventing such transaction. 
In the event that neither the First Option nor the Second Option is exercised, 
Foods shall have the right for a period of 45 days after the termination of the 
Apollo Option Period to Transfer the Section 4.1 Shares at a price not less than 
90% of the price contained in, and on terms and conditions no less favorable to 
Foods than those set forth in, the Transfer Notice; provided that the Transferee 
                                                    --------                     
agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement (unless the 
Transfer is pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act). 
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                                   ARTICLE V 
 
                                 REGISTRATION 
                                 ------------ 
 
          Section 5.1  Demand Registration. 
                       -------------------  
 
          (a) After the consummation of an IPO or at such time prior to the 
consummation of an IPO as is permitted by Section 10.3 with respect to a given 
Shareholder, upon a Shareholder's written request specifying the intended manner 
of disposition (including the number of shares of Vail Equity to be sold) (a 
"Demand Notice"), Vail will use its best efforts to prepare and file with the 
SEC, as expeditiously as possible, a Registration Statement on an available form 
for which Vail then qualifies (but not including by means of a shelf 
registration pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act), which legal counsel 
for Vail deems appropriate and which is available for the sale of  Vail Equity 
to permit an underwritten public offering of some or all of the shares of Vail 
Equity then held by such Shareholder and use its best efforts to cause such 
registration statement to become effective (a "Demand Registration"). 
 
          (b) A Demand Registration will not be deemed to have occurred until it 
has become effective under the Securities Act (unless a Shareholder delivers a 
Demand Notice and subsequently withdraws the Demand Notice, in which case such 
Demand Registration will be deemed to have occurred unless such Shareholder 
agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses associated with such 
registration actually incurred by Vail); provided, however, that if, after a 
Demand Registration has become effective, the offering of Vail Equity pursuant 
to such Demand Registration is prohibited by any stop order, injunction or other 
order or requirement of the SEC or other governmental agency or a court, such 
Demand Registration will be deemed not to have occurred (unless such prohibition 
on the sale of the Vail Equity is based on actions or omissions of such 
Shareholder, in which case such Demand Registration will be deemed to have 
occurred unless such Shareholder agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket 
expenses associated with such registration actually incurred by Vail). 
 
          (c) Vail shall only be obligated to effect one Demand Registration per 
Shareholder in any twelve month period under this Section 5.1; provided, 
however, that Vail will not be required to register the Vail Equity pursuant to 
a Demand Notice under this Section 5.1 if at such time (i) the shares of Vail 
Equity which a Shareholder is requesting to be registered pursuant to this 
Section 5.1 constitute less than 6.0% (or, if 
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less, all of the shares of Vail Equity owned by such Shareholder) of the 
outstanding Vail Securities so requested to be registered or (ii) such Demand 
Notice is given within six (6) months after the effective date of any other 
registration of any Vail Securities under the Securities Act. 
 
          (d) The managing underwriter will be selected by the Shareholder 
requesting registration pursuant to this Section 5.1 (the "Requesting 
Shareholder"); provided, however, that such underwriter shall be subject to the 
approval of Vail, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  In the 
event there is one or more co-managers, the first such co-manager shall be 
selected by Vail, provided that such co-manager shall be subject to the approval 
of the Requesting Shareholder, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld 
or delayed, and all other co-managers will be selected by the Requesting 
Shareholder. 
 
          (e) In connection with a Demand Registration, both the Shareholder not 
requesting the Demand Registration (the "Non-Requesting Shareholder") and Vail 
may elect to include additional shares of Vail Securities in such offering on 
the same terms and conditions as the Vail Equity to be sold by the Requesting 
Shareholder; provided, however, that if the managing underwriter(s) advises the 
Requesting Shareholder, the Non-Requesting Shareholder and Vail that, in its 
judgment, the number of shares proposed to be included in such offering exceeds 
the largest number of Vail Securities which can be sold without having an 
adverse effect on such offering, including the price at which such securities 
can be sold (the "Marketable Number"), then the total number of shares to be 
included in such offering shall be limited as follows:  (i) first, all the 
shares of Vail Equity that the Requesting Shareholder and the Non-Requesting 
Shareholder propose to sell up to the Marketable Number, allocated pro rata 
between the Requesting Shareholder and the Non-Requesting Shareholder on the 
basis of the relative number of Vail Securities that the Requesting Shareholder 
and the Non-Requesting Shareholder have proposed to be included in such 
registration, and (ii) second, all the shares of Vail Securities that Vail 
proposes to sell, which does not exceed the difference, if any, between the 
Marketable Number and that number of shares which the Requesting Shareholder and 
the Non-Requesting Shareholder have included pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) 
above. 
 
          Section 5.2  Delay of Demand Registration.  Notwithstanding anything 
                       ----------------------------                            
to the contrary in Article V hereof, in the event that Vail determines in its 
reasonable judgment that it may be advisable to delay filing a Registration 
Statement described in Section 5.1 hereof or to withdraw such Registration 
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Statement if such Registration Statement has already been filed, Vail may delay 
filing such, or withdraw such previously filed, Registration Statement for a 
period of not more than ninety (90) days from the date of receipt of the request 
for the Demand Registration if Vail furnishes to the Requesting Shareholder a 
certificate signed by an executive officer of Vail stating that Vail has 
reasonably determined that (i) such a filing would adversely affect any proposed 
financing or acquisition by Vail or (ii) such a filing would otherwise represent 
an undue hardship for Vail; provided, however, that Vail will, at the request of 
                            --------  -------                                    
the Requesting Shareholder, file or refile, as the case may be, such 
Registration Statement promptly after Vail, in its reasonable judgment, 
determines that it is no longer advisable to delay filing or to continue the 
withdrawal of such Registration Statement but in no event shall the filing or 
re-filing of such Registration Statement be delayed more than the aforementioned 
ninety (90) days. 
 
          Section 5.3  Piggyback Registration. 
                       ----------------------  
 
          (a)  Right To Include Vail Equity. 
               ----------------------------  
 
          (i) If Vail or any other Person (other than a Shareholder) at any time 
proposes to register any Vail Securities under the Securities Act (other than a 
registration of securities in connection with a merger, an acquisition, an 
exchange offer or an employee benefit plan maintained by Vail or its Affiliates 
or on Form S-4 or S-8 or any successor or similar form or by means of a shelf 
registration pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act to permit sales of 
Vail Securities by employees, officers and directors of Vail), whether or not 
for sale for its own account, in a manner which would permit registration of the 
Vail Equity for sale to the public under the Securities Act, it will give 
written notice to each Shareholder of its intention to do so and of such 
Shareholder's rights under this Section 5.3(a)(i), at least twenty (20) calendar 
days prior to the anticipated filing date of a Registration Statement relating 
to such registration (a "Piggyback Notice").  Such Piggyback Notice will offer 
each Shareholder the opportunity to include in such Registration Statement that 
number of shares of Vail Equity as such Shareholder may request.  Upon the 
written request (the "Piggyback Registration") (which request will specify the 
number of shares of Vail Equity intended to be disposed of by each Shareholder 
pursuant to such Registration Statement) of each Shareholder (the "Piggyback 
Shareholder") made within ten (10) calendar days after the receipt of the 
Piggyback Notice, Vail will use its best efforts to effect the registration 
under the Securities Act of all shares of Vail Equity which Vail has been 
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so requested to register; provided, however, that each Shareholder must sell its 
                          --------  -------                                      
Vail Equity requested to be included in such registration to the underwriter(s) 
selected by Vail on the same terms and conditions as apply to other Persons, 
including Vail, and if, at any time after receiving a reply from each 
Shareholder to a Piggyback Notice and prior to the effective date of the 
Registration Statement filed in connection with such registration, Vail decides 
for any reason not to register any shares of Vail Securities, Vail  will notify 
each Shareholder and thereupon be relieved of its obligation to register any 
Vail Equity in connection with such registration. 
 
         (ii) No registration, whether or not effected under this Section 
5.3(a), will relieve Vail of its obligations to effect Demand Registrations 
under Section 5.1 hereof. 
 
          (b) Priority in Piggyback Registrations.  If the managing underwriter 
              -----------------------------------                               
advises Vail in writing that, in its opinion, the Marketable Number is less than 
that intended to be included in a Registration Statement, Vail will include in 
such Registration Statement (i) first, all of the Vail Securities Vail proposes 
to sell for its own account, and (ii) second, the Vail Securities requested to 
be included by the Shareholders and other Persons pursuant to Section 5.3(a) 
hereof shall be allocated pro rata among the Shareholders on the basis of the 
relative number of Vail Securities each Shareholder and such other Persons has 
requested to be included in such registration. 
 
          Section 5.4  Delay of Piggyback Registration.  Notwithstanding 
                       -------------------------------                   
anything to the contrary in this Article V, in the event that Vail determines in 
its reasonable judgment that it may be advisable to delay filing a Registration 
Statement described in Section 5.3 hereof or to withdraw such Registration 
Statement if such Registration Statement has already been filed, Vail may delay 
filing such, or withdraw such previously filed, Registration Statement in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2 hereof. 
 
          Section 5.5  Holdback Agreements. 
                       -------------------  
 
          (a) Whenever Vail effects an underwritten public offering of Vail 
Equity pursuant to a registration statement (including the IPO), each 
Shareholder agrees not to effect any public sale or distribution, including any 
sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, of any Vail Securities 
(other than as part of such registration) during the 15 days prior to, and 
during the 180-day period (or such shorter period as may be requested by the 
lead underwriter for such offering) beginning 
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on, the effective date of such registration statement. 
 
          (b) In connection with underwritten public offering of Vail Equity 
pursuant to a registration statement under this Agreement, Vail agrees not to 
effect any public sale or  distribution of any Vail Securities (other than as 
part of such registration or in connection with any employee stock option or 
other benefit plan or any private issuance of Vail Equity where the recipient 
also agrees to be bound by the hold back arrangements applicable to Vail under 
this Section 5.5) during the 15 days prior to, and during the 90-day period (or 
such shorter period as may be requested by the lead underwriter for such 
offering) beginning on the effective date of, such registration statement. 
 
          Section 5.6  Right to Purchase in Lieu of Registration. 
                       -----------------------------------------  
 
          (a) Any time Vail receives a request for a Demand Registration or a 
Piggyback Registration from Foods, Vail shall have the option to purchase all 
but not less than all of the Vail Equity proposed to be disposed of in such 
request (the "Section 5.6 Shares") at the Vail Market Price by delivering to 
Foods, a notice of Vail's election to purchase the Section 5.6 Shares within 
seven (7) days of receipt by Vail of the request for the Demand Registration or 
Piggyback Registration, as the case may be, pursuant to Section 5.1 or Section 
5.3(a), as the case may be. 
 
          (b) In the event that Vail decides not to purchase the Section 5.6 
Shares pursuant to Section 5.6(a), then Apollo will have the right, but not the 
obligation, to purchase the Section 5.6 Shares at the Vail Market Price by 
delivering to Foods a notice of Apollo's election to purchase the Section 5.6 
Shares within seven (7) days of Vail deciding not to purchase the Section 5.6 
Shares. 
 
                                   ARTICLE VI 
 
                             REGISTRATION EXPENSES 
                             --------------------- 
 
          Section 6.1  Registration Expenses. 
                       ---------------------  
 
          (a) Subject to Section 5.1(b) of this Agreement, all expenses incident 
to Vail's performance of or compliance with Articles V and VII of this Agreement 
to effect Demand Registrations and Piggyback Registrations will be borne by 
Vail, including, without limitation: 
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             (i) all federal registration and filing fees; 
 
            (ii) subject to Section 7.4, fees and expenses of compliance with 
     securities or blue sky laws; provided, however, that Vail will in no event 
                                  --------  -------                             
     be obligated to pay the fees and disbursements of counsel for the 
     underwriters or the Shareholders in connection with blue sky qualifications 
     of the Vail Equity under the laws of such jurisdictions as the managing 
     underwriter(s) may designate; 
 
           (iii) printing, messenger, telephone and delivery expenses; 
 
            (iv) fees and disbursements of legal counsel for Vail; 
 
             (v) fees and disbursements of all independent certified public 
     accountants of Vail; 
 
            (vi) NASD fees and disbursements of the underwriters; provided, 
                                                                  --------  
     however, that in all cases a Shareholder will pay all costs of discounts, 
     -------                                                                   
     commissions, spreads or fees of underwriters, selling brokers, dealer 
     managers or similar securities industry professionals relating to the 
     distribution of the Vail Equity being sold by such Shareholder; 
 
           (vii) fees and expenses of other Persons retained by Vail; and 
 
          (viii) listing or quotation fees and expenses required to be made 
     pursuant to Section 7.5 hereof in connection with the Registration 
     Statement. 
 
             (b) Each of Vail and the Shareholders will pay its own respective 
internal expenses (including, without limitation, all salaries and expenses of 
its officers and employees performing legal or accounting duties), the fees and 
expenses of any Person, including special experts, retained by Vail or the 
Shareholders, respectively. 
 
                                  ARTICLE VII 
 
                             REGISTRATION PROCEDURE 
                             ---------------------- 
 
          Section 7.1  Shareholder Information.  Each Shareholder will provide 
                       -----------------------                                 
Vail with such information about such Shareholder and the intended manner of 
distribution of Vail  Equity and otherwise cooperate with Vail and the 
underwriter(s) as may be 
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necessary in the reasonable opinion of Vail to satisfy any obligation of Vail 
under this Agreement to register the Vail Equity under federal or state 
securities laws and otherwise take actions related thereto.  In the event of the 
failure of a Shareholder to comply with the requirements of the preceding 
sentence Vail may delay filing such, and withdraw such previously filed, 
Registration Statement.  Vail will file or refile, as the case may be, such 
Registration Statement promptly following compliance with such requirements by a 
Shareholder; provided, however, that a Shareholder will be responsible for any 
             --------  -------                                                 
reasonable out-of-pocket costs which arise out of such non-compliance.  A 
Shareholder will immediately notify Vail upon discovery that any information 
provided by such Shareholder which is included in the prospectus that is 
included in a Registration Statement, as then in effect, is untrue in any 
material respect, or omits to state any material fact required to be stated 
therein or to make the information stated therein not misleading in the light of 
the circumstances under which it is presented. 
 
          Section 7.2  Compliance.  Each Shareholder and Vail will comply with 
                       ----------                                              
all rules and regulations of the SEC and applicable state securities or blue sky 
laws governing the manner of sale of securities in connection with the Transfer 
of any of the Vail Equity pursuant to any Registration Statement. 
 
          Section 7.3  Provision of Prospectuses. 
                       -------------------------  
 
          (a) Vail will furnish to each Shareholder such number of copies of a 
summary prospectus or other prospectus, including a prospectus subject to 
completion in conformity with the requirements of the Securities Act, and such 
other documents as such Shareholder may reasonably request in writing, in order 
to facilitate the public sale or other disposition of the Vail Equity of each 
Shareholder included in a Registration Statement. 
 
          (b) At any time when a sale or other disposition of Vail Equity 
pursuant to a Registration Statement is subject to a prospectus delivery 
requirement, Vail will notify each Shareholder of the occurrence of any event 
that causes the prospectus included in such Registration Statement, as then in 
effect, to include an untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a 
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements 
therein not misleading in the light of the circumstances then existing and Vail 
will use its  best efforts, as expeditiously as possible, to either amend the 
prospectus or otherwise take any actions so that use of the previous prospectus 
may be legally resumed.  Upon receipt of such a notice, each Shareholder will 
immediately discontinue all sales 
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or other dispositions of Vail Equity pursuant to the Registration Statement. 
Each Shareholder may resume such sales or dispositions only upon receipt of an 
amended prospectus or after such Shareholder is advised by Vail that the use of 
the previous prospectus may be legally resumed. 
 
          Section 7.4  Blue Sky Compliance.  Vail will use its best efforts to 
                       -------------------                                     
(a) register or qualify the Vail Equity included in a Registration Statement 
under the securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions as each Shareholder 
reasonably requests and (b) do any and all other acts that may be reasonably 
necessary or advisable to enable each Shareholder to consummate the public sale 
or disposition of such securities in such jurisdictions; provided, however, that 
                                                         --------  -------       
Vail is not required to consent to, or take any action that would subject it to, 
general service of process or taxation in any jurisdiction where it is not then 
so subject, nor qualify to do business in any jurisdiction where it is not then 
so qualified. 
 
          Section 7.5  Listing of Vail Equity.  Vail will use its best efforts 
                       ----------------------                                  
to cause the Vail Equity when issued to be listed on all securities exchanges on 
which any securities issued by Vail are then listed, or quoted on all automated 
quotation systems on which any such securities of Vail are then quoted, 
including, without limitation, entering into appropriate customary agreements 
(including a listing application and indemnification agreement in customary 
form). 
 
          Section 7.6  Stop Orders.  Vail will promptly notify each Shareholder 
                       -----------                                              
of (a) the receipt by Vail of any notification with respect to the issuance by 
the SEC of any stop order or order suspending the effectiveness of any 
Registration Statement covering any Vail Equity or the initiation of any 
proceedings for that purpose or (b) the receipt by Vail of any notification with 
respect to the limitation, restriction or suspension of the offer or sale of 
Vail Equity in any jurisdiction in which the Vail Equity was qualified to be 
sold, or the initiation of any proceedings for such purpose.  In the event that 
Vail notifies each Shareholder of any such event, each Shareholder will 
immediately discontinue all sales or other dispositions of Vail Equity pursuant 
to the Registration Statement until such time that Vail notifies each 
Shareholder of the lifting of such stop order or similar order; provided, 
                                                                --------   
however, that such a stop order or similar order issued by a state securities or 
- -------                                                                          
blue sky administrator will apply only to offers and sales in such state, unless 
each Shareholder is advised otherwise by Vail.  Vail, with the cooperation of 
each Shareholder, will use its best efforts to contest any such proceedings and 
to obtain the withdrawal of any 
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such order at the earliest possible date. 
 
                                  ARTICLE VIII 
 
                        INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRIBUTION 
                        -------------------------------- 
 
             Section 8.1  Indemnification. 
                          ---------------  
 
     (a)  Indemnification by Foods. 
          ------------------------  
 
          (i) Foods agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Vail and its 
Affiliates and Associates (each such Person being hereinafter referred to as a 
"Vail Indemnified Party") from and against all losses, claims, damages, 
liabilities and expenses (including reasonable costs of investigation and legal 
expenses) (each a "Loss") arising out of or based upon any untrue statement or 
alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any Registration 
Statement or preliminary, final or summary prospectus covering the Vail Equity, 
or in any amendment or supplement thereto, or in any document incorporated by 
reference into any of the foregoing or arising out of or based upon any omission 
or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated 
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, but only if, 
and only to the extent, such statement or alleged statement or omission or 
alleged omission was made in reliance upon and in conformity with written 
information furnished to Vail or its representatives by or on behalf of Foods 
for use in the preparation of such Registration Statement, preliminary, final or 
summary prospectus or such amendment or supplement thereto, or such document 
incorporated by reference.  This indemnity will be in addition to any liability 
which Foods may otherwise have.  Foods will also indemnify the underwriter(s), 
selling broker(s), dealer manager(s) and similar securities industry 
professionals participating in the distribution, their officers and directors 
and each Person who Controls such Persons to the same extent as provided above 
with respect to the indemnification of a Vail Indemnified Party. 
 
         (ii) Foods also agrees to indemnify and hold harmless any Vail 
Indemnified Party to the same extent as provided in clause (i) above from and 
against all Losses arising out of any action or proceeding brought against any 
Vail Indemnified Party in connection with the distribution or proposed 
distribution of Vail Equity to the holders of Foods Stock; provided, however, 
                                                           --------  -------  
that this Section 8.1(a)(ii) shall not apply to any Losses for which Vail is 
responsible as provided in Section 8.1(c) of this Agreement. 
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          (iii)  If any action or proceeding (including any governmental 
investigation or inquiry) is brought or asserted against a Vail Indemnified 
Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought from Foods, such Vail 
Indemnified Party will promptly notify Foods in writing of the commencement of 
such action and Foods shall assume the defense thereof and have primary control 
over any related suit or proceeding, including the employment of legal counsel 
and the payment of all expenses in connection therewith; provided, however, that 
                                                         --------  -------       
the failure of any Vail Indemnified Party to give notice as provided herein 
shall not relieve Foods of its obligations under this Section 8.1(a) except to 
the extent that Foods is actually materially prejudiced by such failure to give 
notice.  A Vail Indemnified Party shall have the right to participate in and 
jointly with Foods, to the extent that it may wish, and employ separate counsel 
reasonably satisfactory to such Vail Indemnified Party, provided, however, that 
                                                        --------  -------       
Foods will not be liable to such Vail Indemnified Party for any legal or other 
expenses incurred by such Vail Indemnified Party in connection therewith, unless 
such Vail Indemnified Party shall have been advised by counsel that a conflict 
of interest between such Vail Indemnified Party and Foods is likely to exist in 
respect of such claim. 
 
          (b)   Indemnification by Apollo. 
                -------------------------  
 
          (i)   Apollo agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Vail 
Indemnified Party from and against all Losses arising out of or based upon any 
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any 
Registration Statement or preliminary, final or summary prospectus covering the 
Vail Equity, or in any amendment or supplement thereto, or in any document 
incorporated by reference into any of the foregoing or arising out of or based 
upon any omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required 
to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, 
but only if, and only to the extent, such statement or alleged statement or 
omission or alleged omission was made in reliance upon and in conformity with 
written information furnished to Vail or its representatives by or on behalf of 
Apollo for use in the preparation of such Registration Statement, preliminary, 
final or summary prospectus or such amendment or supplement thereto, or such 
document incorporated by reference. This indemnity will be in addition to any 
liability which Apollo may otherwise have. Apollo will also indemnify the 
underwriter(s), selling broker(s), dealer manager(s) and similar securities 
industry professionals participating in the distribution, their officers and 
directors and each Person who Controls such Persons to the same extent as 
provided above with respect to the indemnification of a Vail 
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Indemnified Party. 
 
          (ii) Apollo also agrees to indemnify and hold harmless any Vail 
Indemnified Party to the same extent as provided in clause (i) above from and 
against all Losses arising out of any action or proceeding brought against any 
Vail Indemnified Party in connection with the distribution or proposed 
distribution of Vail Equity to the holders of Apollo Stock; provided, however, 
                                                            --------  -------  
that this Section 8.1(b)(ii) shall not apply to any Losses for which Vail is 
responsible as provided in Section 8.1(c) of this Agreement. 
 
          (iii)  If any action or proceeding (including any governmental 
investigation or inquiry) is brought or asserted against a Vail Indemnified 
Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought from Apollo, such Vail 
Indemnified Party will promptly notify Apollo in writing of the commencement of 
such action and Apollo shall assume the defense thereof and have primary control 
over any related suit or proceeding, including the employment of legal counsel 
and the payment of all expenses in connection therewith; provided, however, that 
                                                         --------  -------       
the failure of any Vail Indemnified Party to give notice as provided herein 
shall not relieve Apollo of its obligations under this Section 8.1(b) except to 
the extent that Apollo is actually materially prejudiced by such failure to give 
notice.  A Vail Indemnified Party shall have the right to participate in and 
jointly with Apollo, to the extent that it may wish, and employ separate counsel 
reasonably satisfactory to such Vail Indemnified Party, provided, however, that 
                                                        --------  -------       
Apollo will not be liable to such Vail Indemnified Party for any legal or other 
expenses incurred by such Vail Indemnified Party in connection therewith, unless 
such Vail Indemnified Party shall have been advised by counsel that a conflict 
of interest  between such Vail Indemnified Party and Apollo is likely to exist 
in respect of such claim. 
 
          (c)   Indemnification by Vail. 
                -----------------------  
 
          (i)   Vail agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Shareholder and 
its Affiliates and Associates (each such person being hereinafter referred to as 
a "Shareholder Indemnified Party") from and against all Losses arising out of or 
based upon any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact 
contained in any Registration Statement, preliminary, final or summary 
prospectus covering the Vail Equity, or in any amendment or supplement thereto, 
or in any document incorporated by reference into any of the foregoing or 
arising out of or based upon any omission or alleged omission to state therein a 
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the 
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statement therein not misleading, except insofar as such Losses arise out of or 
are based solely upon any such untrue statement or omission or allegation 
thereof based upon written information provided by or on behalf of a Shareholder 
for inclusion in such Registration Statement, preliminary, final or summary 
prospectus, or such amendment or supplement thereto, or such document 
incorporated by reference; provided, however, that Vail will not be liable in 
                           --------  -------                                  
any such case to the extent that any such Loss arises out of or is based upon an 
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission 
made in any preliminary prospectus if (A) such Shareholder failed to send or 
deliver a copy of the final prospectus with or prior to the delivery of written 
confirmation of the sale of the Vail Equity covered by the Registration 
Statement to the Person asserting such Loss, and (B) the final prospectus 
corrected such untrue statement or omission; and provided, further, that Vail 
                                                 --------  -------            
will not be liable in any such case to the extent that any such Loss arises out 
of or is based upon an untrue statement or omission in the final prospectus, if 
such untrue statement or omission is corrected in an amendment or supplement to 
the final prospectus and if, having previously been furnished by or on behalf of 
Vail with copies of the final prospectus as so amended or supplemented, such 
Shareholder thereafter fails to deliver such prospectus as so amended or 
supplemented, prior to or concurrently with the sale of the Vail Equity to the 
Person asserting such Loss who purchased such Vail Equity which is the subject 
thereof.  This indemnity will be in addition to any liability which Vail may 
otherwise have.  Vail will also indemnify the underwriter(s), selling broker(s), 
dealer manager(s) and similar securities industry professionals participating in 
the distribution, their officers and directors and each Person who Controls such 
Persons to the same extent as provided above with respect to the indemnification 
of a Shareholder Indemnified Party. 
 
          (ii) If any action or proceeding is brought against a Shareholder 
Indemnified Party in respect of which indemnity may be sought against such 
Shareholder Indemnified Party, such Shareholder Indemnified Party will promptly 
notify Vail in writing of the commencement of such action and Vail will assume 
the defense thereof and have primary control over any related suit or 
proceeding, including the employment of legal counsel and the payment of all 
expenses in connection therewith; provided, however, that the failure of any 
                                  --------  -------                          
Shareholder Indemnified Party to give notice as provided herein shall not 
relieve Vail of its obligations under this Section 8.1(c) except to the extent 
that Vail is actually materially prejudiced by such failure to give notice.  A 
Shareholder Indemnified Party shall have the right to 
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participate in and jointly with Vail, to the extent that it may wish, and employ 
separate counsel reasonably satisfactory to such Shareholder Indemnified Party, 
provided, however, that Vail will not be liable to such Shareholder Indemnified 
- --------  -------                                                               
Party for any legal or other expenses incurred by such Shareholder Indemnified 
Party in connection therewith, unless such Shareholder Indemnified Party shall 
have been advised by counsel that a conflict of interest between such 
Shareholder Indemnified Party and Vail is likely to exist in respect of such 
claim. 
 
          Section 8.2  Contribution. 
                       ------------  
 
          (a) If the Indemnification provided for in Section 8.1 hereof is 
unavailable to a Vail Indemnified Party or Shareholder Indemnified Party under 
Section 8.1(a), 8.1(b) or Section 8.1(c) hereof (other than by reason of the 
exceptions provided in Sections 8.1(a), 8.1(b) and 8.1(c)) in respect of any 
Losses referred to therein, then such indemnifying party, in lieu of 
indemnifying such indemnified party, will contribute to the amount paid or 
payable by such indemnified party as a result of such Losses in such proportion 
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the indemnifying party, on 
the one hand, and the indemnified party, on the other hand, in connection with 
the statements or omissions which resulted in such Losses, as well as any other 
relevant equitable considerations.  The relative fault of the  indemnifying 
party, on the one hand, and the indemnified party, on the other hand, shall be 
determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue statement or 
alleged untrue statement of a material fact or the omission or alleged omission 
to state a material fact relates to information supplied by such indemnified 
party and each parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission.  The amount paid 
or payable by each party as a result of the Losses referred to above will be 
deemed to include, subject to the limitations set forth in Sections 8.1(a), 
8.1(b) and 8.1(c) hereof, any legal or other fees or expenses reasonably 
incurred by such party in connection with investigating or defending any action 
or claim. 
 
          (b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.2(a) hereof, no Person 
found to be guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation shall be entitled to 
contribution from any Person who is not found to be guilty of such fraudulent 
misrepresentation. 



 
  
                                     -27- 
 
                                  ARTICLE IX 
 
                               TAKE-ALONG RIGHTS 
                               ----------------- 
 
          Section 9.1  Take-Along Rights.  Apollo may not effect a Transfer (or 
                       -----------------                                        
a series of related Transfers) of Vail Equity to one person or a related group 
of persons if such Transfer would result in a Change of Control of Vail (other 
than Transfers effected by sales of Vail Equity through underwriters in a public 
offering or in the securities markets generally) (the "Section 9.1 Shares") 
without first complying with this Section 9.1.  If Apollo desires to Transfer 
the Section 9.1 Shares, Apollo shall give written notice (the "Take-Along 
Notice") to Foods stating (i) the name and address of the transferee (the "Non- 
Qualified Transferee") and (ii) the price and terms upon which the Non-Qualified 
Transferee proposes to purchase the Section 9.1 Shares.  Foods shall have the 
irrevocable option, but not the obligation (the "Take-Along Option"), to sell to 
the Non-Qualified Transferee, up to a number of shares of Vail Equity (the 
"Included Shares") determined in accordance with Section 9.1(a), at the price 
and on the terms set forth in the Take-Along Notice.  The Take-Along Option 
shall be exercised by Foods by giving written notice to Apollo, within ten 
business days of receipt of the Take-Along Notice, indicating its election to 
exercise the Take-Along Option.  Failure by Foods to give such notice within the 
ten business day period shall be deemed an election by  Foods not to sell its 
shares of Vail Equity pursuant to that Take-Along Notice.  The closing with 
respect to any sale to a Non-Qualified Transferee pursuant to this Section 9.1 
shall be held at the time and place specified in the Take-Along Notice but in 
any event within 30 days of the date the Take-Along Notice is given; provided 
                                                                     -------- 
that if through the exercise of reasonable efforts Apollo is unable to cause 
such transaction to close within 30 days, such period may be extended for such 
reasonable period of time as may be necessary to close such transaction. 
Consummation of the sale of the Section 9.1 Shares by Apollo to a Non-Qualified 
Transferee shall be conditioned upon consummation of the sale by Foods to such 
Non-Qualified Transferee of the Included Shares, if any. 
 
          (a) The number of Included Shares purchased from Foods shall be 
determined by multiplying the number of Shares proposed to be purchased from 
Apollo by a Non-Qualified Transferee by a fraction, the numerator of which is 
the total number of shares of Vail Equity owned by Foods and the denominator of 
which is the sum of the total number of shares of Vail Equity owned by Apollo 
and Foods. 
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          (b) Apollo shall arrange for payment directly by the Non-Qualified 
Transferee to Foods, upon delivery of the certificate or certificates 
representing the Included Shares duly endorsed for transfer, together with such 
other documents as the Non-Qualified Transferee may reasonably request.  The 
reasonable costs and expenses incurred by Apollo and Foods in connection with a 
sale of shares of Vail Equity subject to this Section 9.1 shall be allocated pro 
rata based upon the number of shares of Vail Equity sold by each Shareholder to 
a Non-Qualified Transferee. 
 
          (c) If, at end of 30 days following the date on which a Take-Along 
Notice was given, the sale of shares of Vail Equity by Apollo and the sale of 
the Included Shares, if any, have not been completed in accordance with the 
terms of the Non-Qualified Transferee's offer, all certificates representing the 
Included Shares shall be returned to Foods, and all the restrictions on Transfer 
contained in this Agreement with respect to shares of Vail Equity owned by 
Apollo shall again be in effect. 
 
                                   ARTICLE X 
 
                            INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING 
                            ----------------------- 
 
          Section 10.1  IPO Commitment.  Vail and Apollo hereby agree to use 
                        --------------                                       
reasonable efforts to consummate the IPO as soon as possible following the 
Closing. 
 
          Section 10.2  Co-Manager.  In connection with the IPO (unless the IPO 
                        ----------                                              
is effected by means of a Demand Registration by Foods), Foods shall select one 
of the co-managers (other than the lead manager); provided, however, that such 
                                                  --------  -------            
co-manager shall be subject to the approval of Vail, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 
 
          Section 10.3  Foods Initiated IPO. 
                        -------------------  
 
          (a)   If the IPO has not been consummated on the later of (i) 
September 30, 1997 or (ii) nine months after the Closing (the "Trigger Date"), 
Apollo, Vail and Foods agree to abide by the procedures of this Section 10.3. 
 
          (b)   Following the Trigger Date, Apollo and Foods agree to discuss in 
good faith for a period of 30 days (the "Discussion Period") the timing of the 
IPO.  At the conclusion of the Discussion Period, Foods may deliver a notice to 
Vail within 30 days (the "Foods Notice") stating that it will request a Demand 
Registration unless Vail consummates the IPO within three months 
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from the date of the Foods Notice.  If at the conclusion of such three-month 
period the IPO has not been consummated, during the next six months Foods shall 
have the right to request a Demand Registration and consummate the IPO by means 
of such Demand Registration.  If at the conclusion of such six-month period the 
IPO has not been consummated, Foods' right to request a Demand Registration to 
effect the IPO shall be suspended for a twelve-month period.  If at the 
conclusion of such twelve-month period the IPO has not otherwise been 
consummated, during the next six months Foods shall again have the right to 
request a Demand Registration and consummate the IPO by means of such Demand 
Registration.  If the IPO is consummated by means of a Demand Registration by 
Foods (the "Foods Initiated IPO"), then Foods shall select the lead manager for 
the Foods Initiated IPO; provided, however, that such lead manager shall be 
                         --------  -------                                  
subject to the approval of Vail, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed.  Vail may select one co-manager in connection with a Foods 
Initiated IPO, subject to the approval of the lead manager for  the Foods 
Initiated IPO, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 
                                   ARTICLE XI 
 
                              ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 
                              -------------------- 
 
          Section 11.1  Maintain Listing or Quotation.  Vail hereby covenants 
                        -----------------------------                         
and agrees that it shall use its best efforts to maintain its listing of Vail 
Securities on any securities exchanges on which Vail Securities are listed in 
the future pursuant to Section 7.5 hereof and to maintain its quotation of Vail 
Securities on any automated quotation systems on which Vail Securities are 
quoted in the future pursuant to Section 7.5 hereto. 
 
          Section 11.2  Board of Directors.  Vail and the Shareholders agree to 
                        ------------------                                      
take all actions necessary to cause the Board of Directors to consist of no more 
than twenty directors.  As long as Foods owns at least 10% of the outstanding 
Vail Securities, Vail and the Shareholders agree to take all actions necessary 
for Foods to be able to nominate and appoint two directors to the Board of 
Directors of Vail, including without limitation Apollo nominating and electing 
such directors as Class 1 directors elected by the holders of the Vail Class A 
Stock. 
 
          Section 11.3  No Inconsistent Agreements.  Vail hereby covenants and 
                        --------------------------                             
agrees that it shall not enter into any agreements governing the transfer or 
registration of shares of Vail Securities which would materially adversely 
affect Foods' rights 
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under this Agreement without Foods' prior written consent. 
 
          Section 11.4  Rules 144 and 144A.  Vail hereby covenants and agrees 
                        ------------------                                    
that it will use its reasonable best efforts to file any reports required to be 
filed by it under the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and it will take such 
further action as Foods may reasonably request, all to the extent required from 
time to time to enable Foods to sell its Vail Equity (subject to the terms 
hereof) without registration under the Securities Act within the limitation of 
the exemptions provided by (a) Rule 144 or 144A under the Securities Act, as 
such Rules may be amended from time to time, or (b) any similar rule or 
regulation hereafter adopted by the SEC. 
 
          Section 11.5  Limitations on Holdings of Foods Associates.  Foods 
                        -------------------------------------------         
shall use its best efforts to cause its Associates and Associates of its 
Affiliates not to own, in the aggregate, 2% or more of the outstanding Vail 
Securities. 
 
                                  ARTICLE XII 
 
                                 MISCELLANEOUS 
                                 ------------- 
 
          Section 12.1  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
                        ----------------                                         
agreement among the parties hereto relative to the subject matter hereof, and 
supersedes all prior written or oral understandings, agreements, conditions or 
representations. 
 
          Section 12.2  Headings and Captions.  All headings and captions used 
                        ---------------------                                  
in this Agreement are for convenience only, and will not be construed to either 
limit or broaden the language of this Agreement or any particular section. 
 
          Section 12.3  Choice of Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and 
                        -------------                                          
construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, 
without giving effect to the conflict of laws provisions thereof, except that 
all matters relating to the internal affairs of Vail shall be governed by and 
construed under and in accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State 
of Delaware. 
 
          Section 12.4  Venue.  Any action or legal proceedings to enforce this 
                        -----                                                   
Agreement or any of its terms, or for indemnification and the recovery of losses 
as provided for in this Agreement by a party, may be brought and prosecuted in 
such court or courts located in the State of New York as provided by law, and 
the parties to this Agreement consent to the 



 
  
                                     -31- 
 
jurisdiction of said court or courts and to service of process by registered 
mail, return receipt requested, or by any other manner provided by New York law. 
 
          Section 12.5  Notices.  Any notice or other communication required or 
                        -------                                                 
permitted hereunder is deemed delivered when delivered in person, when 
transmitted by telecopier (which will also be sent concurrently by certified or 
registered mail), on the next Business Day when sent by Federal Express or a 
similar overnight delivery service, or on the third Business Day when sent by 
registered or certified U.S. mail service as follows: 
 
                    If to Foods: 
 
                    Ralston Foods, Inc. 
                    800 Market Street 
                    Suite 2900 
                    St. Louis, Missouri  63101 
 
                    Attn.:  Robert W. Lockwood, Esq. 
                    Facsimile No.:  (314) 877-7748 
 
                    If to Vail: 
 
                    Vail Resorts, Inc. (Delivery other than 
                    137 Benchmark Road       mail) 
                    Avon, Colorado  81620 
 
                    Vail Resorts, Inc. (Mail Delivery) 
                    Post Office Box 7 
                    Vail, Colorado  81658 
 
                    Attn.:  James S. Mandel, Esq. 
                    Facsimile No.:  (970) 845-2912 
 
                    If to Apollo: 
 
                    1301 Avenue of the Americas 
                    New York, New York  10019 
                    Attn.:  Marc Rowan 
                    Facsimile No.:  (212) 261-4071 
 
                    With a copy to: 
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                    James J. Clark, Esq. 
                    Cahill Gordon & Reindel 
                    80 Pine Street 
                    New York, NY  10005 
 
                    Facsimile No.:  (212) 269-5420 
 
The parties to this Agreement will promptly notify each other in the manner 
provided in this Section 12.5 of any change in their respective addresses.  A 
notice of change of address will not be deemed to have been given until received 
by the addressee. 
 
          Section 12.6  Amendments.  No changes, modifications, amendments or 
                        ----------                                            
additions will be valid unless such be made in writing and signed by or on 
behalf of each party. 
 
          Section 12.7  Extended Meanings.  Words importing the singular number 
                        -----------------                                       
include the plural and vice versa, and words importing the masculine gender 
include the feminine and neuter genders. 
 
          Section 12.8  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding 
                        ----------------------                                   
upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns; provided each of Foods and Vail shall have the 
                                  --------                                       
right to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement as a whole (i) 
in a transaction pursuant to Section 3.2(b), (g) or (h) or (ii) to the surviving 
entity in a merger, consolidation, combination or other corporate transaction 
involving it if the surviving entity agrees in writing to be bound by the terms 
hereof, and Apollo shall have the right to assign its rights and obligations 
under this Agreement to any of its Affiliates or in a bona fide distribution of 
its assets following dissolution or liquidation, provided each of the 
                                                 --------             
distributees agrees in writing to be bound by the terms hereof. 
 
          Section 12.9  Severability.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any 
                        ------------                                             
provision hereof in any jurisdiction will not affect the validity or 
enforceability of this Agreement, including that provision, in any other 
jurisdiction.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, each party waives any 
provision of law that renders any provision hereof prohibited or unenforceable 
in any respect.  If any term, provision, covenant or restriction in this 
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the parties hereto will use their best efforts to find and employ 
an alternative means to achieve the same or substantially the same result as 
that contemplated by such term, provision, covenant or 
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restriction and the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and 
restrictions set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect, in order to 
achieve the intent of the parties to the extent possible. 
 
          Section 12.10  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed 
                         ------------                                  
simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which is deemed an original, 
but all of which together constitute a single agreement, and it is not necessary 
in making proof of this Agreement to produce or account for more than one such 
counterpart. 
 
          Section 12.11  Remedies Cumulative.  Except as otherwise expressly 
                         -------------------                                 
limited herein, the remedies given to any party by this Agreement are in 
addition to all remedies under any statute or rule of law.  Any forbearance or 
failure or delay in exercising any remedy hereunder is not deemed to be a waiver 
of any other remedy a party may have under this Agreement. 
 
          Section 12.12  Binding Agreement.  This Agreement will be deemed 
                         -----------------                                 
effective and legally binding upon the parties when it has been executed and 
delivered by all parties hereto.  This Agreement will inure to the benefit of 
the parties hereto and their successors and permitted assignees. 
 
          Section 12.13  Recapitalizations, Exchanges, Etc., Affecting Vail 
                         -------------------------------------------------- 
Securities.  The provisions of this Agreement apply to the full extent set forth 
- ----------                                                                       
herein with respect to the Vail Equity, to any and all shares of capital stock 
of Vail or any successor or assign of Vail (whether by merger, consolidation, 
sale of assets or otherwise) which may be issued in respect of or in exchange or 
substitution for Vail Equity and will be appropriately adjusted for any stock 
dividends, splits, reverse splits, combinations, recapitalizations and the like 
occurring after the date hereof. 
 
          Section 12.14  Other Agreements.  Nothing contained in this Agreement 
                         ----------------                                       
will be deemed to be a waiver of, or release from, any obligations any party 
hereto may have under any other agreement, including, without limitation, the 
Purchase Agreement. 
 
          Section 12.15  Termination.  This Agreement, and all rights and 
                         -----------                                      
obligations of each party hereto, shall terminate (i) upon agreement of each of 
the Shareholders, (ii) upon the voluntary or involuntary dissolution of Vail, 
(iii) upon the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of Vail or upon a 
Change of Control of Vail, (iv) when Apollo and its Affiliates own less than 10% 
of the shares of Vail Equity owned by Apollo on 
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the date of this Agreement (adjusted accordingly for any stock splits, stock 
dividends or similar recapitalizations by Vail after the date hereof) or (v) 
when Foods and its Affiliates own less than 10% of the outstanding Vail 
Securities.  The provisions of Article VIII hereof shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement. 
 
          Section 12.16  Enforcement.  Each of Vail, Apollo and Foods agree that 
                         -----------                                             
any breach of the provisions contained in this  Agreement by Vail, Apollo and/or 
Foods would cause irreparable harm to the other and its Affiliates and 
therefore, notwithstanding any right of Vail, Apollo and/or Foods to recover 
monetary damages with respect to any such breach (a) as set forth in this 
Agreement or (b) at law, Vail, Apollo and Foods will each be entitled to 
equitable relief to enjoin any threatened or continuing breach of the other 
hereof and, in the event of any action for specific performance, each party 
shall waive the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.  If the scope of 
any restriction contained in this Agreement is too broad to permit enforcement 
to its fullest extent, then such restriction will be enforced to the maximum 
extent permitted by law in the manner provided in Section 12.9 hereof.  Nothing 
herein stated will be construed as prohibiting any party from pursuing any other 
remedies available to that party for a breach hereunder, including recovery of 
damages. 
 
          Section 12.17  Confidentiality.  Each of Foods, Apollo and Vail 
                         ---------------                                  
acknowledges that the other would be irreparably damaged if confidential 
knowledge of its business and affairs were disclosed or utilized on behalf of 
any Person.  Each of Vail, Apollo and Foods covenants and agrees not to disclose 
or use any such confidential information of the other unless such information 
has been made available to the public generally (other than in violation of this 
Section 12.17) or Vail, Apollo and/or Foods is required to disclose such 
information by a governmental body or regulatory agency or by law in connection 
with a transaction that is not otherwise prohibited hereby. 
 
          Section 12.18  Fiduciary Accounts.  Vail, Apollo and Foods each 
                         ------------------                               
acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall apply only to the Vail 
Securities owned by Foods and Apollo for its own respective  account and does 
not apply to any Vail Securities which may be deemed to be beneficially owned or 
controlled by Foods or their respective Affiliates and which shares are held in 
fiduciary accounts in connection with any pension plans, profit sharing plans or 
other employee benefit plans or held in any other fiduciary accounts. 
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          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by an 
officer thereunto duly authorized, all as of the day and year first above 
written. 
 
 
                                 VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
 
 
 
                                 By:  /s/ James S. Mandel 
                                     ----------------------------------- 
                                     Name:  James S. Mandel 
                                     Title: Senior Vice President 
 
 
                                 RALSTON FOODS, INC. 
 
 
 
                                 By:  /s/ J. A. Micheletto 
                                     ----------------------------------- 
                                     Name:  J. A. Micheletto 
                                     Title: Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
                                 APOLLO SKI PARTNERS, L.P. 
 
 
 
                                 By: Apollo Investment Fund, L.P. 
 
                                 By: Apollo Advisors, L.P. 
 
                                 By: Apollo Capital Management, Inc. 
 
 
                                 By: /s/ Marc Rowan 
                                    ----------------------------------- 
                                     Name: Marc Rowan 
                                     Authorized Signatory 



 
  
                                                                    Exhibit 2.5 
  
                       REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
  
To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of 
 Ralston Resorts, Inc. 
  
  In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholder's equity and 
cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Ralston Resorts, Inc. and its subsidiaries at September 30, 1995 and 1996, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended September 30, 1996, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 
  
  As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company 
and its parent have entered into an agreement to sell the Company. 
  
Price Waterhouse LLP 
Denver, Colorado 
October 31, 1996 
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                     RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
  
 
 
                                                                SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                              ----------------- 
                                                                1995     1996 
                                                              -------- -------- 
                                                                  
                           ASSETS 
Current assets: 
  Cash and cash equivalents.................................. $    813 $  1,274 
  Accounts receivable, net...................................    5,359    6,325 
  Inventories................................................    2,685    3,820 
  Deferred income taxes......................................      157      111 
  Prepaid expenses...........................................      304      680 
                                                              -------- -------- 
    Total current assets.....................................    9,318   12,210 
Property and equipment, net..................................  128,662  131,000 
Goodwill and intangibles, net................................   37,929   36,177 
Land held for development....................................   27,684   28,788 
Investments in joint ventures................................   22,325   22,564 
Other noncurrent assets......................................      322      271 
                                                              -------- -------- 
    Total assets............................................. $226,240 $231,010 
                                                              ======== ======== 
            LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 
  Accounts payable........................................... $  8,454 $ 11,535 
  Accrued expenses...........................................    5,950    5,912 
  Line of credit.............................................      --   140,032 
  Current portion of long-term debt..........................    1,757    1,774 
                                                              -------- -------- 
    Total current liabilities................................   16,161  159,253 
Long-term debt...............................................  128,296   26,522 
Deferred income taxes........................................   12,473   12,294 
Other noncurrent liabilities.................................    2,277    1,998 
                                                              -------- -------- 
    Total liabilities........................................  159,207  200,067 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14) 
Stockholder's Equity: 
Common stock, stated value of $10 per share, 
 100 shares authorized, issued and outstanding...............        1        1 
Additional paid-in capital...................................   59,986   16,024 
Retained earnings............................................    7,046   14,918 
                                                              -------- -------- 
    Total stockholder's equity...............................   67,033   30,943 
                                                              -------- -------- 
    Total liabilities and stockholder's equity............... $226,240 $231,010 
                                                              ======== ======== 
 
  
  The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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                     RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
  
 
 
                                                  YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                 ---------------------------- 
                                                   1994      1995      1996 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
                                                             
REVENUES 
  Resort........................................ $127,676  $125,816  $135,750 
  Real Estate...................................    4,979     1,778       914 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
                                                  132,655   127,594   136,664 
Resort operating expenses.......................  (77,404)  (77,600)  (79,441) 
Real estate operating expenses and cost of 
 sales..........................................   (3,837)   (1,040)      -- 
Selling, general and administrative expenses....  (16,978)  (17,246)  (18,547) 
Depreciation....................................  (12,114)  (12,824)  (13,544) 
Amortization....................................   (2,113)   (2,124)   (2,236) 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
Earnings before interest and taxes..............   20,209    16,760    22,896 
Interest expense................................   (5,087)   (9,686)   (9,200) 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
Income before income taxes......................   15,122     7,074    13,696 
Income taxes....................................   (6,199)   (3,147)   (5,824) 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
Net income...................................... $  8,923  $  3,927  $  7,872 
                                                 ========  ========  ======== 
 
  
  
  The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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                     RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
           CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY 
                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
  
 
 
                                                  ADDITIONAL 
                                           COMMON  PAID-IN   RETAINED 
                                           STOCK   CAPITAL   EARNINGS   TOTAL 
                                           ------ ---------- --------  -------- 
                                                            
Balance at September 30, 1993.............  $ 1    $136,542  $ 41,934  $178,477 
Net income................................                      8,923     8,923 
Dividends to Parent.......................                    (47,738)  (47,738) 
Net transactions with Parent..............          (67,875)            (67,875) 
                                            ---    --------  --------  -------- 
Balance at September 30, 1994.............    1      68,667     3,119    71,787 
Net income................................                      3,927     3,927 
Net transactions with Parent..............           (8,681)             (8,681) 
                                            ---    --------  --------  -------- 
Balance at September 30, 1995.............    1      59,986     7,046    67,033 
Net income................................                      7,872     7,872 
Net transactions with Parent..............          (43,962)            (43,962) 
                                            ---    --------  --------  -------- 
Balance at September 30, 1996.............  $ 1    $ 16,024  $ 14,918  $ 30,943 
                                            ===    ========  ========  ======== 
 
  
  
  
  The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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                     RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
  
 
 
                                                  YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                 ----------------------------- 
                                                   1994      1995      1996 
                                                 --------  --------  --------- 
                                                             
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income.....................................  $  8,923  $  3,927  $   7,872 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
 provided by operating activities: 
 Depreciation..................................    12,114    12,824     13,544 
 Amortization..................................     2,113     2,124      2,236 
 Equity in earnings of joint ventures..........       (36)     (217)      (914) 
 Deferred income taxes.........................     1,559       935       (133) 
 Changes in assets and liabilities used in op- 
  erations 
   Increase in accounts receivable.............      (846)   (1,546)      (966) 
   Increase in inventories.....................      (280)       (1)    (1,135) 
   Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses.....       918        98       (376) 
   Decrease (increase) in land held for devel- 
    opment.....................................    (2,712)    2,090     (1,104) 
   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable.....     1,296    (1,178)     3,081 
   Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses.....      (414)      216        (38) 
   Other, net..................................       807    (1,730)       554 
                                                 --------  --------  --------- 
     Net cash provided by operating activi- 
      ties.....................................    23,442    17,542     22,621 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Additions to property and equipment............   (10,396)  (11,011)   (17,761) 
Distributions from (investments in) joint ven- 
 tures, net....................................    (1,681)     (550)       675 
Additions to goodwill and intangibles..........       (83)     (358)      (484) 
                                                 --------  --------  --------- 
     Net cash used by investing activities.....   (12,160)  (11,919)   (17,570) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt...........      (227)     (242)  (100,257) 
Line of credit.................................       --        --     140,032 
Net transactions with Parent...................   (12,848)   (5,788)   (44,365) 
                                                 --------  --------  --------- 
     Net cash used by financing activities.....   (13,075)   (6,030)    (4,590) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv- 
 alents........................................    (1,793)     (407)       461 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year...     3,013     1,220        813 
                                                 --------  --------  --------- 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year.........  $  1,220  $    813  $   1,274 
                                                 ========  ========  ========= 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW 
 INFORMATION 
Interest paid..................................  $    173  $    158  $     143 
NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 
Allocation of debt from Parent.................   100,000 
Land contributed to joint venture with 
 Intrawest.....................................    17,509 
Noncash investments in joint ventures..........               1,946 
Transfer of land from Parent...................                          1,065 
Noncash dividend to Parent.....................    47,738 
Debt payments made by Parent...................                          1,500 
 
  
                     The accompanying notes are an integral 
                part of these consolidated financial statements. 
  
                                       5 



 
  
                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  
1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION 
  
 General 
  
  Ralston Resorts, Inc. (the "Company") is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Ralston Foods, Inc. ("Ralston Foods"). Ralston Foods is in turn a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Ralcorp Holdings, Inc. ("Ralcorp"), which is a publicly held 
company that was spun-off from Ralston Purina Company on March 31, 1994. 
Ralston Foods and Ralcorp are collectively referred to as the "Parent". 
  
  The Company operates the Keystone Resort lodging and food and beverage 
operations and the Keystone, Breckenridge and Arapahoe Basin ski areas. All of 
the Company's operations are located in Colorado. The Company's revenue is 
earned primarily in December through March. 
  
  On July 22, 1996, the Company and Ralston Foods entered into a stock 
purchase agreement with Vail Resorts, Inc. The agreement calls for Vail 
Resorts, Inc. to acquire all issued and outstanding shares of the Company's 
stock upon the closing date of the agreement in return for approximately 
7,554,000 shares of Vail Resorts, Inc. common stock. Vail Resorts, Inc. will 
also assume debt of up to $165,000,000. 
  
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
 Principles of Consolidation 
  
  The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Investments in joint ventures 
are accounted for under the equity method. All significant intercompany 
transactions have been eliminated. 
  
 Allocation of Common Costs 
  
  Certain common costs, such as the salaries for certain corporate officers, 
accounting costs and legal fees are allocated to the Company based upon the 
Parent's estimate of time incurred specifically related to the Company's 
activities. Management believes that these allocations are reasonable. 
  
 Use of Estimates 
  
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 
  
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
  
  For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly 
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. 
  
 Property and Equipment 
  
  Property and equipment is stated at cost including certain internal costs 
directly associated with the acquisition and construction of such property and 
equipment. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
estimated useful lives as follows: 
  
 
                                                                   
      Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures..................  3-20 years 
      Ski lifts.....................................................    15 years 
      Ski trails.................................................... 15-30 years 
      Buildings.....................................................    30 years 
      Land improvements............................................. 10-30 years 
 
  
  Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
  
 Inventories 
  
  Inventories include primarily ski shop items and rentals, food and beverage, 
china and silver, and uniforms. 
  
 Goodwill and Intangibles 
  
  Goodwill and intangible assets are capitalized and amortized using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
  
 
                                                                  
      Goodwill..................................................... 15-25 years 
      Forest service permits.......................................    37 years 
      Trademarks...................................................    25 years 
      Other intangibles............................................   1-5 years 
 
  
 Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
  
  The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 
accounts payable, accrued expenses, allocated Ralcorp debt, the line of credit 
and Clinton Ditch and Reservoir Company promissory notes approximate their 
fair value. 
  
  The estimated fair value of the refunding revenue bonds and the National 
Australia Bank notes payable as of September 30, 1996 are presented below (in 
thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                                       ESTIMATED 
                                                              CARRYING   FAIR 
                                                               AMOUNT    VALUE 
                                                              -------- --------- 
                                                                  
      Refunding revenue bonds................................ $23,360   $27,134 
      National Australia Bank notes payable.................. $ 3,000   $ 3,227 
 
  
  The fair value of the refunding revenue bonds was estimated by an 
independent third party. The fair value of the National Australia Bank notes 
payable was estimated by National Australia Bank. 
  
 Impairment 
  
  The Company regularly evaluates whether events or circumstances have 
occurred which might impair the recoverability of the carrying value of its 
long-lived assets, goodwill and other intangibles. In making such 
determination with respect to goodwill, the Company evaluates its historical 
and anticipated operating results, including future undiscounted cash flows. 
Management believes that there has been no material impairment of the 
Company's goodwill and other intangibles. 
  
 Income Taxes 
  
  The Company is included in the consolidated income tax returns of Ralcorp. 
Taxes have been provided for in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements as if the Company filed its own tax return. 
  
 Revenue Recognition 
  
  Resort revenue primarily consists of revenue from ski operations, lodging, 
food and beverage operations, conference center operations and other 
recreational activities and is recognized as services are performed or as 
goods are sold. Real estate revenue is recognized when consideration has been 
received, title, possession and other attributes of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer and the Company is not obligated to perform 
significant additional activities after the sale. 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
 Advertising Costs 
  
  Advertising costs are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. 
Advertising expense for the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996 was 
$4,501,000, $4,571,000 and $5,180,000, respectively. 
  
 Earnings Per Share 
  
  Due to the proposed acquisition of the Company by Vail Resorts, Inc., the 
Company's historical capital structure is not indicative of its prospective 
structure upon the closing of the anticipated purchase transaction. 
Accordingly, historical net income per common share is not considered 
meaningful and has not been presented herein. 
  
 Adoption of New Accounting Standard 
  
  The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, 
Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets 
to Be Disposed Of, during fiscal year 1995. The adoption of this standard did 
not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. 
  
 Reclassifications 
  
  Certain reclassifications have been made to the accompanying financial 
statements to conform to the current year presentation. 
  
3. RECEIVABLES 
  
  Receivables and the related allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows 
(in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                                 SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                                 -------------- 
                                                                  1995    1996 
                                                                 ------  ------ 
                                                                    
   Trade accounts receivable.................................... $4,353  $6,011 
   Miscellaneous receivables....................................  1,064     364 
   Allowance for doubtful accounts..............................    (58)    (50) 
                                                                 ------  ------ 
                                                                 $5,359  $6,325 
                                                                 ======  ====== 
 
  
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
  
  Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                               SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                             ------------------ 
                                                               1995      1996 
                                                             --------  -------- 
                                                                  
   Machinery and equipment.................................. $116,853  $120,449 
   Buildings................................................   56,101    55,506 
   Land used in operations..................................    9,662     9,600 
   Construction in progress.................................    5,371    16,960 
                                                             --------  -------- 
                                                              187,987   202,515 
   Less accumulated depreciation............................  (59,325)  (71,515) 
                                                             --------  -------- 
                                                             $128,662  $131,000 
                                                             ========  ======== 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
  
5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES 
  
  Goodwill and intangibles consist of the following (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                                SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                               ---------------- 
                                                                1995     1996 
                                                               -------  ------- 
                                                                   
   Goodwill................................................... $36,951  $36,951 
   Forest service permit......................................   5,010    5,010 
   Trademarks and other intangibles...........................   2,993    3,477 
                                                               -------  ------- 
                                                                44,954   45,438 
   Less accumulated amortization..............................  (7,025)  (9,261) 
                                                               -------  ------- 
                                                               $37,929  $36,177 
                                                               =======  ======= 
 
  
6. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 
  
  Included in land held for development at September 30, 1995 and 1996, is 
approximately $8,900,000 of land subject to an agreement with 
Keystone/Intrawest L.L.C., a joint venture of the Company. The agreement with 
Keystone/Intrawest L.L.C. calls for the Company to contribute the land to the 
joint venture (as a capital contribution) at an agreed upon value of 
approximately $11,400,000 prior to June 1, 1999. 
  
7. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 
  
  During 1994, the Company formed Keystone/Intrawest L.L.C., which is a joint 
venture with Intrawest Resorts, Inc., to develop land at the base of the 
Keystone ski area. The Company contributed land and prepaid tap fees with a 
historical cost of approximately $18,900,000 for the development as well as 
certain other funds to the joint venture. The joint venture intends to build 
condominiums, townhomes, single-family homes and commercial shop space 
throughout the base of Keystone Mountain using a master development plan over 
approximately 20 years. 
  
  As real estate development projects are completed, the Company will receive 
payments for the related land which it previously contributed to the joint 
venture. Losses are allocated first to the partners to the extent of their 
capital accounts. Income is first applied to offset prior cumulative allocated 
losses with subsequent income shared 50/50. The investment in this joint 
venture is accounted for under the equity method. 
  
  Condensed unaudited financial information for Keystone/Intrawest L.L.C. 
follows (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                         AS OF AND FOR THE 
                                                      YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                     --------------------------- 
                                                       1994     1995      1996 
                                                     -------- --------  -------- 
                                                                
   Assets........................................... $ 26,840 $ 48,417  $ 63,188 
   Liabilities......................................      670   12,153    33,959 
   Partners' equity.................................   26,170   36,264    29,229 
   Gross revenues...................................      381    1,570    27,082 
   Gross profit.....................................      204      599     1,927 
   Net income (loss)................................       64     (147)    1,474 
 
  
  Starfire Mountain Homes is a joint venture (in the form of a general 
partnership) with Focus Keystone I, Ltd. to construct certain condominiums 
near the base of Keystone Mountain. The development was completed during 
fiscal 1996, with management of the condominiums turned over to the Company. 
The Company receives 20% of the income or loss of the joint venture and 
accounts for the investment under the equity method. 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
8. ACCRUED EXPENSES 
  
  Accrued expenses consist of the following (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                                  SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                                  ------------- 
                                                                   1995   1996 
                                                                  ------ ------ 
                                                                    
   Property and use taxes........................................ $3,198 $3,975 
   Payroll and payroll related liabilities.......................  2,578  1,765 
   Interest payable..............................................    174    172 
                                                                  ------ ------ 
                                                                  $5,950 $5,912 
                                                                  ====== ====== 
 
  
9. LONG-TERM DEBT 
  
  Long-term debt consists of the following (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                             SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                            ----------------- 
                                                              1995     1996 
                                                            --------  ------- 
                                                                 
   Allocated Ralcorp debt.................................. $100,000  $    -- 
   Bank of New York, trustee for refunding revenue bonds, 
    7.125% to 7.875%, maturing September 1998 to 2010, 
    secured by certain assets of the Company...............   23,360   23,360 
   National Australia Bank, notes payable, 10.85% to 
    11.15%, maturing September 1997-1998, secured by 
    certain assets of the Company..........................    4,500    3,000 
   Clinton Ditch and Reservoir Company, a related party, 
    promissory notes, 6.5%, due in annual installments 
    through August 13, 2002................................    2,193    1,936 
                                                            --------  ------- 
                                                             130,053   28,296 
   Less current portion....................................   (1,757)  (1,774) 
                                                            --------  ------- 
                                                            $128,296  $26,522 
                                                            ========  ======= 
 
  
  The Ralcorp debt represents a Ralcorp revolving credit facility, a portion 
of which has been allocated by Ralcorp to the Company. The Ralcorp revolving 
credit facility bears interest at a LIBOR related rate. The original maturity 
of the debt was in 1999. In March 1996, the maturity date was extended to 
March 12, 2001. On September 30, 1996, the Ralcorp debt was replaced by a line 
of credit. See Note 10. Amounts owed under the revolving credit facility are 
guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by certain Ralcorp subsidiaries, 
including the Company. 
  
  Interest expense on the revolving credit facility has been allocated to the 
Company in the amounts of $2,700,000, $7,100,000 and $6,700,000 for fiscal 
1994, 1995 and 1996, respectively, based on Ralcorp's average interest rate 
and the Company's allocated debt. 
  
  Future payments due on long-term debt as of September 30, 1996 are as 
follows (in thousands): 
  
 
 
              FISCAL 
              YEARS 
              ------ 
                                         
              1997........................ $ 1,774 
              1998........................   3,152 
              1999........................     311 
              2000........................     331 



              2001........................     353 
              Thereafter..................  22,375 
                                           ------- 
                                           $28,296 
                                           ======= 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
10. LINE OF CREDIT 
  
  At September 30, 1996, the Ralcorp debt was replaced by a bank line of 
credit in contemplation of the acquisition of the Company by Vail Resorts, 
Inc. The line of credit was established by Ralcorp on behalf of the Company 
with Boatmen's Bank and bore interest at 8.25% on September 30, 1996, 
switching to a LIBOR related rate on October 2, 1996. The line of credit is 
renewable weekly with a final maturity at January 28, 1997. The line of credit 
is guaranteed by Ralcorp. 
  
11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
  
  Net Transactions with Parent included in the Statement of Changes in 
Stockholder's Equity represents the net transactions with the Parent related 
to payroll, employee benefits, insurance premiums and claims, interest, taxes, 
general corporate overhead and participation in Ralcorp's cash management 
program. The Company and the Parent do not intend to settle these intercompany 
amounts and, therefore, they are reflected as part of the permanent equity of 
the Company. 
  
  Net transactions with Parent consist of the following (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                    YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                   ---------------------------- 
                                                     1994      1995      1996 
                                                   --------  --------  -------- 
                                                               
   Cash transfers................................. $ 42,335  $ 34,377  $ 35,387 
   Debt and interest allocations..................   46,797    (8,274)   28,772 
   Payroll and employee benefits..................  (14,187)  (14,869)  (14,830) 
   Income taxes...................................   (6,199)   (3,147)   (5,824) 
   Asset transfers................................   (1,624)       --       265 
   Allocated overhead.............................     (791)     (373)     (937) 
   Pensions.......................................      321       345       381 
   Other..........................................    1,223       622       748 
                                                   --------  --------  -------- 
                                                   $ 67,875  $  8,681  $ 43,962 
                                                   ========  ========  ======== 
 
  
12. SELF-INSURANCE PLANS 
  
  The Company has a self-insurance plan for employee health benefits. The 
health insurance plan covers all employees who elect enrollment once 
eligibility requirements have been met and contains a stop-loss provision to 
limit the Company's liability to $75,000 per employee. The liability for 
employee health benefits was $380,000 and $402,000 at September 30, 1995 and 
1996, respectively. 
  
  The Company also has a self-insurance plan for workers' compensation 
approved by the State of Colorado Department of Labor. The Company has a 
$500,000 retention limit and a $1,600,000 bond to guarantee payment of 
workers' compensation claims. The liability for workers' compensation was 
$1,573,000 and $1,272,000 at September 30, 1995 and 1996, respectively. 
  
  The Company has a self-insurance retention limit of $500,000 per occurrence 
and $2,000,000 in the aggregate for general liability insurance prior to an 
outside insurance company's coverage. The accrual for general liability 
insurance was $324,000 at September 30, 1995 and 1996. 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
13. INCOME TAXES 
  
  The Company is included in the consolidated income tax return of Ralcorp. 
Income taxes have been allocated to the Company as if it were filing a stand- 
alone return. The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows 
(in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                      YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                     -------------------------- 
                                                       1994     1995     1996 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
                                                               
Current tax provision 
  Federal........................................... $  3,962 $  1,880 $  5,188 
  State.............................................      678      332      769 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
                                                        4,640    2,212    5,957 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
Deferred tax provision (benefit) 
  Federal...........................................    1,426      855     (122) 
  State.............................................      133       80      (11) 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
                                                        1,559      935     (133) 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
    Total tax provision............................. $  6,199 $  3,147 $  5,824 
                                                     ======== ======== ======== 
 
  
  The following is a reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate 
and the Company's effective income tax rate: 
  
 
 
                                                      YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                     -------------------------- 
                                                       1994     1995     1996 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
                                                               
Statutory federal income tax rate...................    35.0%    35.0%    35.0% 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit......     3.3%     3.3%     3.3% 
Nondeductible intangible amortization...............     2.1%     4.5%     2.3% 
Nondeductible portion of meals and entertainment....      .5%     1.3%     1.6% 
Other...............................................      .1%      .4%      .3% 
                                                     -------- -------- -------- 
Effective income tax rate...........................    41.0%    44.5%    42.5% 
                                                     ======== ======== ======== 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
  
  The components of gross deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows 
(in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 
                                     SEPTEMBER 30,          SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                  ------------------- ------------------------- 
                                    1995      1996        1995         1996 
                                  --------- --------- ------------ ------------ 
                                                        
Current: 
  Doubtful accounts.............. $      22 $      21 $         -- $         -- 
  Start-up costs.................        85        81           --           -- 
  Receivable.....................        --        --           50           80 
  Vacation accrual...............        80        89           --           -- 
  Accrued expenses...............        20        --           --           -- 
                                  --------- --------- ------------ ------------ 
                                        207       191           50           80 
                                  --------- --------- ------------ ------------ 
Noncurrent: 
  Fixed assets basis 
   differences...................        --        --       13,099       12,924 
  Intangible assets..............        --        --          576          869 
  Accrued pension................       144       548           --           -- 
  Insurance and other accruals...     1,058       951           --           -- 
                                  --------- --------- ------------ ------------ 
                                      1,202     1,499       13,675       13,793 
                                  --------- --------- ------------ ------------ 
    Total deferred taxes......... $   1,409 $   1,690 $     13,725 $     13,873 
                                  ========= ========= ============ ============ 
 
  
14. RETIREMENT PLANS 
  
  Ralcorp sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan which covers 
certain Company employees. The plan provides retirement benefits based on 
years of service and final-average or career-average earnings. It is the 
practice of Ralcorp to fund pension liabilities in accordance with the minimum 
and maximum limits imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974 and federal income tax laws. Plan assets consist primarily of investments 
in a commingled employee benefit trust consisting of marketable equity 
securities, corporate and government debt securities and real estate. 
  
  The Company's share of the components of net pension cost include the 
following (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                  YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                 ---------------------------- 
                                                   1994      1995      1996 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
                                                             
Service cost (benefits earned during the 
 period)........................................ $    382  $    412  $    445 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation...      228       232       240 
Return on plan assets...........................     (280)     (286)     (295) 
Net amortization and deferral...................       (9)      (13)       (9) 
                                                 --------  --------  -------- 
  Net pension cost.............................. $    321  $    345  $    381 
                                                 ========  ========  ======== 
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                    RALSTON RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS--(CONTINUED) 
  
  The following table presents the Company's portion of the funded status of 
the Ralcorp defined benefit plan and amounts recognized in the Company's 
balance sheet at September 30, 1995 and 1996 (in thousands): 
  
 
 
                                                               SEPTEMBER 30, 
                                                              ---------------- 
                                                               1995     1996 
                                                              -------  ------- 
                                                                  
   Actuarial present value of: 
     Vested benefits......................................... $(1,530) $(1,848) 
     Nonvested benefits......................................    (521)    (629) 
                                                              -------  ------- 
     Accumulated benefit obligation..........................  (2,051)  (2,477) 
     Effect of projected future salary increases.............  (1,242)  (1,501) 
                                                              -------  ------- 
     Projected benefit obligation............................  (3,293)  (3,978) 
   Plan assets at fair value.................................   3,519    4,308 
                                                              -------  ------- 
   Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation.....     226      330 
     Unrecognized net gain...................................    (888)  (1,348) 
     Unrecognized prior service cost.........................      12        9 
     Unrecognized net asset at transition....................     (81)     (70) 
                                                              -------  ------- 
   Accrued pension cost...................................... $  (731) $(1,079) 
                                                              =======  ======= 
 
  
  The key actuarial assumptions used in determining net pension cost and the 
projected benefit obligation were as follows: 
  
 
 
                                                             1994   1995   1996 
                                                            ------ ------ ------ 
                                                                  
   Discount rate........................................... 7.875% 7.875% 7.625% 
   Rate of future compensation increases................... 5.500% 5.500% 5.250% 
   Long-term rate of return on plan assets................. 9.500% 9.500% 9.500% 
 
  
  The Company also has a 401(k) plan for its employees and certain employees 
participate in the Ralcorp plan. Matching contributions totaled $577,000, 
$604,000 and $678,000 for the years ended September 30, 1994, 1995 and 1996, 
respectively. 
  
15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
  
  The Company has aggregate future minimum lease payments under noncancelable 
operating leases having an initial or remaining term of more than one year as 
of September 30, 1996 as follows (in thousands): 
  
 
 
              FISCAL 
              YEARS 
              ------ 
                                          
              1997......................... $1,948 
              1998.........................  1,780 
              1999.........................  1,533 
              2000.........................  1,084 
              2001.........................  1,022 
 
  
  The Company is involved in various routine legal proceedings incidental to 
the conduct of its normal business operations. The Company's management 
believes that none of these legal proceedings will have a material adverse 
impact on the financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity of the 
Company. 
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                                                                     EXHIBIT 2.6 
                            PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA 
  
  The following unaudited pro forma financial data (the "Pro Forma Financial 
Data") is derived from the historical consolidated financial statements of the 
Company and Ralston Resorts, Inc. The unaudited pro forma statement of 
operations data for the year ended September 30, 1996 give effect to the 
Acquisition as if it had occurred on October 1, 1995. The unaudited pro forma 
balance sheet data as of September 30, 1996 give effect to the Acquisition as if 
it had occurred on such date. The Pro Forma Financial Data is not intended to be 
indicative of either future results of operations or results that might have 
been achieved had the Acquisition actually occurred on the dates specified. In 
the opinion of the Company's management, all adjustments necessary to present 
fairly such unaudited pro forma combined financial data have been made based 
upon the proposed terms of the Acquisition. No estimates of future cost savings 
related to administrative consolidations and other efficiencies or economies of 
scale related to the Acquisition have been reflected in the pro forma statement 
of operations data. The following information includes the results of the 
Arapahoe Basin mountain resort, which will be divested pursuant to the Consent 
Decree. 
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                               VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
                UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET DATA 
                            AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1996 
  
 
 
                                         RALSTON  ACQUISITION PRO FORMA 
                             THE COMPANY RESORTS  ADJUSTMENTS COMBINED 
                             ----------- -------- ----------- --------- 
                                               (IN THOUSANDS) 
                                                          
Cash and cash equivalents..   $ 12,712   $  1,274  $          $ 13,986 
Receivables................      5,741      6,325               12,066 
Inventories................      4,639      3,820                8,459 
Deferred income taxes......     17,200        111               17,311 
Other current assets.......      5,490        680                6,170 
                              --------   --------  --------   -------- 
 Total current assets......     45,782     12,210               57,992 
Property and equipment, 
 net.......................    192,669    131,000              323,669 
Real estate held for sale..     88,665     28,788              117,453 
Investment in joint ven- 
 ture......................        --      22,564     6,485     29,049 
Deferred charges and other 
 assets....................     10,440        271               10,711 
Intangible assets..........     85,056     36,177   124,253    245,486 
                              --------   --------  --------   -------- 
 Total assets..............   $422,612   $231,010  $130,738   $784,360 
                              ========   ========  ========   ======== 
Accounts payable and 
 accrued expenses..........   $ 48,096   $ 17,447  $ (1,079)  $ 64,464 
Income taxes payable.......        325        --                   325 
Payable under Rights.......     50,513        --                50,513 
Long term debt due within 
 one year..................         63    141,806  (140,032)     1,837 
                              --------   --------  --------   -------- 
 Total current liabili- 
  ties.....................     98,997    159,253  (141,111)   117,139 
Long term debt.............    144,687     26,522   151,704    322,913 
Other long term liabili- 
 ties......................     15,521      1,998               17,519 
Deferred income taxes......     39,500     12,294               51,974 
                              --------   --------  --------   -------- 
 Total liabilities.........    298,705    200,067    10,593    509,365 
Stockholders' equity.......    123,907     30,943   120,145    274,995 
                              --------   --------  --------   -------- 
Total liabilities and 
 stockholders' equity......   $422,612   $231,010  $130,738   $784,360 
                              ========   ========  ========   ======== 
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                               VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
           UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA 
                     FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1996 
  
 
 
                                        HISTORICAL 
                                   -------------------- 
                                               RALSTON   ACQUISITION PRO FORMA 
                                   THE COMPANY RESORTS   ADJUSTMENTS COMBINED 
                                   ----------- --------  ----------- --------- 
                                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
                                                          
Revenues: 
  Resort..........................  $140,288   $135,750    $         $276,038 
  Real estate.....................    48,655        914                49,569 
                                    --------   --------    -------   -------- 
    Total revenues................   188,943    136,664               325,607 
                                    --------   --------    -------   -------- 
Operating expenses: 
  Resort..........................    89,890     97,988               187,878 
  Real estate.....................    40,801        --                 40,801 
  Corporate expense...............    12,698        --                 12,698 
  Depreciation and amortization...    18,148     15,780      3,550     37,478 
                                    --------   --------    -------   -------- 
                                     161,537    113,768      3,550    278,855 
                                    --------   --------    -------   -------- 
Operating income..................    27,406     22,876     (3,550)    46,752 
Investment income.................       586        --                    586 
Interest expense..................   (14,904)    (9,200)    (2,640)   (26,744) 
Gain (loss) on the disposal of 
 fixed assets.....................    (2,630)       --                 (2,630) 
Other.............................    (1,500)       --                 (1,500) 
                                    --------   --------    -------   -------- 
Income (loss) from operations  
 before income taxes.............     8,958     13,696     (6,190)    16,464 
(Provision) benefit for income 
 taxes............................    (4,223)    (5,824)     1,010     (9,037) 
                                    --------   --------    -------   -------- 
Net income........................  $  4,735   $  7,872    $(5,180)  $  7,427 
                                    ========   ========    =======   ======== 
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                               VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
                  UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA 
              SUMMARY OF PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS--BALANCE SHEET DATA 
  
 
 
                                                                 SEPTEMBER 30, 
 BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNT           NOTE ADJUSTMENT                      1996 
 ---------------------           ---- ----------                 ------------- 
                                                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
                                                                     
 ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENTS 
 Investment in joint venture.... (d)  Loan to Keystone JV by 
                                       Foods                           6,485 
                                                                    -------- 
 Intangible assets.............. (a)  Allocation of purchase 
                                       price                         124,253 
                                                                    -------- 
  Effect on total assets........                                     130,738 
                                                                    ======== 
 Accounts payable and accrued 
  expenses......................      Ralston Resorts' pension 
                                       liability which was not 
                                       assumed in the 
                                       Acquisition                    (1,079) 
                                                                    -------- 
 Long-term debt due within one 
  year..........................      Refinancing of Ralston 
                                       Resorts' line of credit 
                                       borrowings under the 
                                       New Credit Facilities        (140,032) 
                                                                    -------- 
 Long-term debt.................      Refinancing of Ralston 
                                       Resorts' line of credit 
                                       borrowings under the 
                                       New Credit Facilities         140,032 
                                      Ralston Resorts' debt in 
                                       excess of that assumed 
                                       in the Acquisition             (3,328) 
                                 (b)  Transaction costs 
                                       related to the 
                                       Acquisition                    15,000 
                                                                    -------- 
                                                                     151,704 
                                                                    -------- 
  Effect on total liabilities...                                      10,593 
                                                                    ======== 
 Stockholders' equity...........      Elimination of Ralston 
                                       Resorts stockholder's 
                                       equity                        (30,943) 
                                      Issuance of shares of 
                                       Common Stock to Foods         151,088 
                                                                    -------- 
                                                                     120,145 
                                                                    ======== 
  
         SUMMARY OF PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS--STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA 
  
 
                                                                      YEAR 
                                                                     ENDED 
                                                                 SEPTEMBER 30, 
 STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS ITEM    NOTE ADJUSTMENT                      1996 
 ----------------------------    ---- ----------                 ------------- 
 ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENTS 
 ----------------------- 
                                                                   
 Depreciation and amortization.. (a)  Amortization of               $ (3,550) 
                                      goodwill................ 
 Interest expense............... (c)  Interest expense on debt 
                                       assumed in the 
                                       Acquisition............        (2,640) 
 Provision for income taxes..... (e)  Tax effect of pro forma 
                                       adjustments............         1,010 
                                                                    -------- 
  Effect on net income..........                                    $ (5,180) 
                                                                    ======== 
 



  
                                       4 



 
  
                              VAIL RESORTS, INC. 
  
                NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL DATA 
  
(a) The Acquisition of Ralston Resorts by the Company will result in the 
    assets of Ralston Resorts being written up to reflect the purchase price 
    of the transaction. The purchase price of Ralston Resorts will be 
    calculated as the sum of (i) the fair value of the Company's Common Stock 
    that will be issued to Foods, the sole stockholder of Ralston Resorts, 
    (ii) the fair value of any liabilities of Ralston Resorts assumed, and 
    (iii) the transaction costs incurred by the Company. Under the purchase 
    accounting method, the acquisition cost is allocated to the assets and 
    liabilities acquired based on their relative fair values. The Company has 
    not yet received the results of appraisals and other valuation studies, 
    nor has it made a final determination of the useful lives of the assets 
    acquired. The Company's preliminary allocation of acquisition cost 
    resulted in an excess of purchase price over the historical basis of net 
    assets acquired of approximately $124.3 million. For purposes of the pro 
    forma combined financial data, this excess has been allocated to various 
    intangible assets, including goodwill. Amortization expense in the pro 
    forma financial statements has been calculated assuming an amortization 
    period of 35 years. 
  
  When the final purchase price is computed as of the closing date and an 
  actual allocation of the purchase price to the underlying assets acquired 
  is completed, some portion of the excess of purchase price over the 
  historical basis of the net assets acquired may be allocated to specific 
  tangible and intangible assets. Only after the final purchase price has 
  been allocated and the estimated remaining useful lives of the tangible and 
  intangible assets are determined by management will the actual amortization 
  charge associated with the acquired assets of Ralston Resorts become 
  available. The actual allocation of purchase cost and the resulting effect 
  on operating income may differ significantly from the pro forma amounts 
  included herein. 
  
  The following table summarizes the preliminary purchase price allocation: 
  
 
                                                                 
      Stock to be issued.......................................... $151,088,100 
      Debt assumed................................................  165,000,000 
      Transaction costs...........................................   15,000,000 
                                                                   ------------ 
      Total purchase price........................................ $331,088,100 
                                                                   ============ 
      Purchase price allocation: 
      Historical cost basis of acquired net assets................ $206,835,000 
      Purchase price in excess of historical cost basis...........  124,253,100 
                                                                   ------------ 
                                                                   $331,088,100 
                                                                   ============ 
 
  
(b) The Company incurred various direct costs and professional fees in 
    connection with the Acquisition which will be paid from borrowings under 
    the New Credit Facilities. 
  
(c) The average rate of interest under the New Credit Facilities is assumed to 
    be 6.5%. 
  
(d) As of September 30, 1996, Foods had made loans to the Keystone JV in the 
    aggregate amount of $6 million. Under the terms of the Acquisition, these 
    loans and an accrued interest receivable of $485,000 as of September 30, 
    1996, were assigned to Ralston Resorts upon the closing of the 
    Acquisition. 
  
(e) All adjustments to the unaudited Pro Forma Combined Statement of 
    Operations Data have been tax-effected using the expected statutory rate. 
  
(f) The pro forma financial data set forth above includes the results of the 
    Arapahoe Basin mountain resort, which the Company will divest pursuant to 
    the Consent Decree. The following table summarizes certain financial and 
    operating data for Arapahoe Basin for fiscal 1996. This presentation is 
    not intended to be indicative of the operations or financial position of 
    Arapahoe Basin on a stand alone basis, but rather to isolate its impact on 
    the combined pro forma financial data of the Company after giving effect 
    to the 
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   Acquisition. Resort Cash Flow for Arapahoe Basin includes $300,000 of 
   certain operating expenses of Ralston Resorts which have been allocated to 
   Arapahoe Basin. 
  
 
 
                                                                ARAPAHOE BASIN 
                                                              ------------------ 
                                                              FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
                                                              SEPTEMBER 30, 1996 
                                                              ------------------ 
                                                            
      Revenues...............................................     $6,554,000 
      Resort cash flow.......................................      3,004,000 
      Total assets ..........................................      5,060,000 
      Property & equipment, net .............................      4,910,000 
      Skier days ............................................        241,435 
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